
 
1 of  3 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 
 

 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 4, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on proposed submission of the City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance 

and Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 10, 

2018) 
 

b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 
 

c. Oral comments. 
 

2. Resolution approving the submission of the City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2931, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 

design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, upon its second 
consideration. 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the resignation of Donna Bash as a member of the Historic Preservation 

Commission. 
 

b. Receive and file the bids received for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 

c. Approve a request for a street closure on Park Drive on September 29, 2018. 
 

d. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal. 



 
2 of  3 

 

(2) Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
(3) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(4) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(5) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. 
(September 21-22, 2018) 
(7) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - new. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution naming official depositories for the City of Cedar Falls. 

 
b. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY18 Official Financial Report 

for Streets. 
 

c. Resolution approving and adopting the rate of $3.89 per $1,000 taxable value for the 
Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) for FY20. 
 

d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Services Agreement with Municipal 
Code Corporation relative to agenda management software. 
 

e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety 
Communications 28E Agreement with participating government agencies in Black Hawk 
County relative to providing consolidated dispatch and communications services. 
 

f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Access Agreement for Solid Waste 
Collection Services with Whispering Pines Condominiums Owners' Association relative to 
garbage, yard waste and refuse services. 
 

g. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Huff Contracting, Inc. in the amount of 
$103,920.00, for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 

h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Huff Contracting, Inc. for the 
Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.g.) 
 

i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 
Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with 
Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to preparation of a 
Federal Recreational Trails Program Grant Application for the Lake Street Trail. 
 

k. Resolution supporting a Grant Application to the Federal Recreation Trails Program for the 
Lake Street Trail Project, and confirming the City's commitment to maintain the trail for public 
use for a minimum of twenty years. 
 

l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of six Agreements for Professional Services 
relative to use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, in conjunction with 
the FY18-19 Annual Action Plan. 
 

m. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 815 Olive Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 



 
3 of  3 

 

Incentive Program. 
 

n. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for a mural 
at 408-412 Main Street. 
 

o. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for a 
building addition at 308 Franklin Street. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of four Owner Purchase Agreements and 
two Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting four Owner's Temporary 
Grading Easements and one Public Utility Easement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 

q. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of property located at the north end 
of Lakeshore Drive. 
 

r. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for construction of a 
warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive. 
 

s. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a 
proposed Agreement for Private Development with Six Kids, L.L.C., conveyance of certain 
city-owned real estate to Six Kids, L.L.C. and payment of certain economic development 
grants pursuant to said proposed Agreement. 
 

t. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural District, to HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, of property located in 
the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue, subject to certain 
conditions. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected 
to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 
governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. 
 

L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

M. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
52017 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of August 20, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52018 - City Clerk Danielsen announced that Item G-2.d. was being removed from the 

Resolution Calendar. 
 
52019 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 24, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the 
Central Business District Overlay Zoning District. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Green that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and 
placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52020 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner I Lehmann commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
52021 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2931, amending 

Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the 
Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52022 -     It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2929, amending 

Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the City's floodplain regulations, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2929 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52023 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2930, rezoning 

property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition 
pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, 
which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, be passed upon its 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2930 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52024 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,238, approving 

and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Amend Restrictions in Deed of 
Dedication relative to property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway 
Business Park Addition, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,238 
duly passed and adopted. 
 

52025 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the following items and 
recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
 Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 20, 2018 relative to 

the following items: 
(1) Parking along Bergstrom Boulevard. 
(2) Hearst Center and Cultural Programs Presentation. 
(3) Pavement Management Program. 
(4) Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Ordinance Update. 
(5) Review of urban chickens. 
(6) Bills & Payroll. 
 

Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of August 21, 2018. 
 

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2018. 
 

Receive and file the FY18 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 

Approve the following special event related requests: 
(1) Street closure, Coventry Lane, September 13, 2018. 
(2) Parking variance, West 2nd Street, September 15, 2018. 
(3) Street closure, College Street, September 20, 2018 & October 18, 2018. 
(4) Grant Wheeler Memorial 5K Run/Walk, October 27, 2018. 

 
Approve the application of Masala Market, 913 West 23rd Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 

(1) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
(2) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal. 
(3) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(4) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(5) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

(6) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(7) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(8) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 

expansion of outdoor service area. (September 21-23, 2018) 
(9) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (September 7-8, 2018 and September 29-30, 2018) 
(10) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Class B beer & outdoor 

service - 5-day permit. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52026 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,239, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow 
and clear overgrown vegetation on the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 

 
  Resolution #21,240, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 

Utilization of School Bus Services for Non-School Travel with Cedar Falls 
Community School District relative to summer travel for the Camp Cedar Falls 
program. 

 
Resolution #21,241, approving and authorizing execution of a contract with the 
Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau (GTSB) relative to funding for traffic enforcement 
and training. 

 
Resolution #21,242, approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding 
Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage 
Station. 

 
Resolution #21,243, approving and accepting the bid of Blacktop Service Company, 
in the amount of $136,174.67, for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 

 
Resolution #21,244, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop 
Service Company for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 

 
Resolution #21,245, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman 
Concrete for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 

 
Resolution #21,246, approving the preliminary plat of West Village. 

 
 Resolution #21,247, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory 

Note for property located at 2103 Washington Street relative to the Rental to Single 
Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

 
 Resolution #21,248, approving and authorizing execution of eleven Owner Purchase 

Agreements and one Tenant Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting ten 
Owner's Temporary Grading Easements and one Public Utility Easement, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

 
Resolution #21,249, approving three occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

the public improvements in Arbors Third Addition. 
 
 Resolution #21,250, setting September 17, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the 

City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report for the 
Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,239 through #21,250 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52027 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the bills and payrolls be allowed 

as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue City 
checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52028 - The Mayor, Community Development Director Sheetz and Public Works and Parks 

Manager Heath responded to inquiries by Councilmember Darrah regarding the 
status of any requirements relative to dry cutting of concrete.  

 
52029 - Public Works and Parks Manager Heath provided an update on staff activity 

following the recent flash flooding. 
 
 Councilmember Wieland expressed appreciation for time spent over the holiday 

weekend by City staff responding to flooding.  
 
52030 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:12 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-4-

Item C. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY17-18 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Programs 
    Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
 
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be held 
on Monday, September 17, 2018 regarding the above referenced project. The report contains 
the progress made on Community Development Block Grant funded activities from July 1, 
2017 through June 30, 2018.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-5-

Item E.1. 



 



 CAPER 1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Preliminary Draft for Review 
August 30th, 2018 
 
 
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
CDBG Entitlement/HOME Programs 
Federal Fiscal Year 2017/City Fiscal Year 2018 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)  

-7-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Citizen Participation 

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 

Comment Period: August 30th, 2018-September 17th, 2018. (Affidavit of Publication) 

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to 
comment on performance reports. 

In addition to a formal 15-day comment period on performance reports and a City Council Public 
Heariing, the Cedar Falls Housing Commission reviews CDBG projects at its monthly meetings and 
recommends their approval or revision to staff.  Status reports pertaining to all major projects are given 
to the Housing Commission on a monthly basis.   The Housing Commission and City Council also review 
the Annual Action Plan, Consolidated Plan, and CAPER each year.  Notice of all meetings are posted 
publically at City Hall, placed on the city's website, and notices are provided to local media in 
accordance with the Iowa Open Meetings Law and City’s Citizen Participation Plan. Additionally, 
program-related reports are made available for examination, published for public comment if necessary, 
and posted on the city's website. The City maintains a list of contacts that provide translation services to 
persons with limited english proficiency. 

Summary of Comments 

(A summary of any public comments made regarding the FFY 2017 CAPER will be inserted here.) 

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes 

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan.  
91.520(a)  
This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and 
executed throughout the program year. 
 

The City of Cedar Falls was able to provide assistance and services to low income residents in 
accordance to the Annual Action Plan through designated projects. These projects and services include 
housing rehabilitation and public services, although no homes were completed during the short 
timeframe between release of funds and the end of the fiscal year covered by this CAPER.  Several 
significant changes with regard to the Cedar Falls program occurred during the past year.  The City 
contracted with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments in February 2018, specifically for 
providing assistance with amending the current Consolidated Plan (FFY 2014-2018) and FFY 2017 Annual 
Action Plan.  The contract changes also included providing assistance with the implementation of the 
FFY 2017 Annual Action Plan, and expending unspent funds from prior years.  However, one of the first 
tasks was to establish a process to complete a lump sum drawdown of HUD funds in order to prevent 
jeopardizing the loss of programmed dollars.  Concurrent to that effort made by City staff, the CIty 
obtained permission to expend funds, through completion of the Tier 1 Environmental Review (ER) and 

-8-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Release of Funds, which was accomplished in late March 2018.  At the same time, the FFY 2018 Annual 
Action Plan and required ER were also completed.  City and INRCOG staff also began reestablishing the 
housing rehabilitation and repair programs, utilizing updated applications, policies, as well as updating 
the procedures for these services.  Finally, agency awards were monitored, reports completed, and 
contracts closed out for FFY 2017. 

Overall, these programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 
improve areas that meet CDBG national objectives in the community. By focusing on the strategic plan 
priorities outlined in the Cedar Falls Consolidated Plan, we were able to provide decent housing by 
preserving the affordable housing stock, providing a suitable living environment, and expanding 
opportunites. In the end, the City of Cedar Falls strives to make progress and complete all activities, 
utilize funding in an efficient manner, and serve those with the greatest need.

-9-

Item E.1. 



 
CA

PE
R 

4 

O
M

B 
Co

nt
ro

l N
o:

 2
50

6-
01

17
 (e

xp
. 0

6/
30

/2
01

8)
 

 Co
m

pa
ri

so
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 v

er
su

s 
ac

tu
al

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

 s
ub

m
it

te
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

ed
 p

la
n 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
n,

 if
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

, w
hy

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

as
 n

ot
 m

ad
e 

to
w

ar
d 

m
ee

ti
ng

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

ti
ve

s.
  9

1.
52

0(
g)

 
Ca

te
go

rie
s,

 p
rio

rit
y 

le
ve

ls
, f

un
di

ng
 s

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
s,

 o
ut

co
m

es
/o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, g
oa

l o
ut

co
m

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

, u
ni

ts
 o

f m
ea

su
re

, t
ar

ge
ts

, a
ct

ua
l 

ou
tc

om
es

/o
ut

pu
ts

, a
nd

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

gr
an

te
e’

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 y

ea
r g

oa
ls

. 
 G

oa
l 

Ca
te

go
ry

 
So

ur
ce

: 
A

m
ou

nt
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
U

ni
t o

f 
M

ea
su

re
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
– St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 

A
ct

ua
l –

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Co
m

pl
et

e 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

– Pr
og

ra
m

 
Ye

ar
 

A
ct

ua
l –

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Ye
ar

 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Co
m

pl
et

e 

Co
lle

ge
 H

ill
 a

nd
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Fa

ca
de

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

CD
BG

: $
0 

Fa
ca

de
 

tr
ea

tm
en

t/
bu

si
ne

ss
 

bu
ild

in
g 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

0 
0 

 1
00

%
 

0 
0 

   
 1

00
%

 

Co
lle

ge
 H

ill
 a

nd
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Fa

ca
de

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

CD
BG

: 
$5

8,
50

0 
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
ss

is
te

d 
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
As

si
st

ed
 

75
 

15
 

   
   

  
20

.0
0%

 
 0

 
 0

 
 1

00
%

 

Co
ns

um
er

 C
re

di
t 

Co
un

se
lin

g 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
CD

BG
: 

$1
7,

50
0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
10

0 
23

0 
   

   
 

23
0.

00
%

 
40

 
13

0 
   

   
 

32
5.

00
%

 

D
em

ol
iti

on
 a

nd
 

Cl
ea

ra
nc

e 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

CD
BG

: 
$1

9,
50

0 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 D

em
ol

is
he

d 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

5 
0 

   
   

   
0.

00
%

 
0 

0 
   

   
   

0.
00

%
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Sh

el
te

r:
 H

om
el

es
s 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Sa

lv
at

io
n 

Ar
m

y 

H
om

el
es

s 
CD

BG
: 

$1
8,

72
5 

H
om

el
es

s 
Pe

rs
on

 
O

ve
rn

ig
ht

 S
he

lte
r 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
25

0 
57

 
   

   
  

22
.8

0%
 

 2
0 

 1
0 

 5
0.

00
%

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
St

oc
k:

 C
FU

 
W

ea
th

er
iz

at
io

n 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
CD

BG
: 

$5
0,

00
0 

H
om

eo
w

ne
r H

ou
si

ng
 

Re
ha

bi
lit

at
ed

 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
U

ni
t 

40
 

0 
   

   
   

0.
00

%
 

0 
0 

0.
00

%
 

-10-

Item E.1. 



 
CA

PE
R 

5 

O
M

B 
Co

nt
ro

l N
o:

 2
50

6-
01

17
 (e

xp
. 0

6/
30

/2
01

8)
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

Im
p:

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 C
D

BG
: 

$0
 

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 o

r 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

fo
r L

ow
/M

od
er

at
e 

In
co

m
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
6 

0 
   

   
   

0.
00

%
 

 0
 

 0
 

 0
%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

tie
s:

 
H

an
di

ca
pp

ed
 

Ac
ce

ss
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

CD
BG

: $
0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
0 

0 
 0

.0
0%

 
0 

0 
   

   
  0

%
 

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

tie
s:

 
H

an
di

ca
pp

ed
 

Ac
ce

ss
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

N
on

-H
ou

si
ng

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

CD
BG

: 
$1

9,
50

0 
O

th
er

 
O

th
er

 
5 

1 
   

   
  

20
.0

0%
 

 0
 

 0
 

 0
%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

: 
Si

de
w

al
ks

 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
CD

BG
: 

$1
9,

50
0 

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 o

r 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

fo
r L

ow
/M

od
er

at
e 

In
co

m
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
40

 
0 

   
   

   
0.

00
%

 
 0

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

: 
Si

de
w

al
ks

 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
CD

BG
: $

0 
Pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

fo
r L

ow
/M

od
er

at
e 

In
co

m
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
0 

0 
 0

%
 

0 
0 

   
   

   
0.

00
%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

: 
Si

de
w

al
ks

 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
CD

BG
: $

0 
O

th
er

 
O

th
er

 
0 

0 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
 

 0
.0

0%
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Bo

ys
 a

nd
 G

irl
s 

Cl
ub

 (N
or

th
 C

ed
ar

) 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
CD

BG
: 

$2
4,

17
5 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
50

0 
0 

   
   

   
0.

00
%

 
 0

 
 0

 
 0

.0
0%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Fa

m
ily

 a
nd

 
Ch

ild
re

n'
s 

Co
un

ci
l 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: 
$1

7,
55

0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
10

0 
14

5 
   

   
  

14
5.

00
%

 
6 

72
 

1,
20

0.
00

%
 

-11-

Item E.1. 



 
CA

PE
R 

6 

O
M

B 
Co

nt
ro

l N
o:

 2
50

6-
01

17
 (e

xp
. 0

6/
30

/2
01

8)
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Fa

m
ily

 a
nd

 
Ch

ild
re

n'
s 

Co
un

ci
l 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: $
0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
fo

r L
ow

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
0 

0 
 0

%
 

0 
0 

   
   

  0
%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
H

um
an

 R
ig

ht
s 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

O
ut

re
ac

h 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: 
$1

4,
00

0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
25

 
0 

   
   

   
0.

00
%

 
 0

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
N

or
th

ea
st

 Io
w

a 
Fo

od
 B

an
k 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: 
$1

5,
60

0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
5,

00
0 

15
,2

12
 

   
   

 
30

4.
24

%
 

3,
00

0 
6,

72
5 

   
   

 
22

4.
17

%
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Pa

th
w

ay
s 

Be
ha

vi
or

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: 
$1

6,
37

5 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
75

 
30

 
   

   
  

25
0.

00
%

 
10

 
17

 
   

   
 

17
0.

00
%

 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
Vi

si
tin

g 
N

ur
se

s 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 

N
on

-H
om

el
es

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l N
ee

ds
 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

CD
BG

: 
$1

5,
60

0 

Pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Lo
w

/M
od

er
at

e 
In

co
m

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 

Pe
rs

on
s 

As
si

st
ed

 
20

0 
80

 
   

   
   

25
0.

00
%

 
35

 
62

 
   

   
 

17
7.

00
%

 

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 
Re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n-

Ce
da

r F
al

ls
 C

D
BG

 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
CD

BG
: 

$8
00

,0
00

 
H

om
eo

w
ne

r H
ou

si
ng

 
Re

ha
bi

lit
at

ed
 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
U

ni
t 

10
0 

37
 

   
   

  
37

.0
0%

 
0 

0 
   

   
 0

.0
0%

 

Ta
bl

e 
1 

- A
cc

om
pl

is
hm

en
ts

 –
 P

ro
gr

am
 Y

ea
r 

&
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
to

 D
at

e 
 

-12-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 
Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and 
specific objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority 
activities identified. 

1. Provide decent affordable and sustainable housing by preserving the housing stock. 

The City of Cedar Falls utilizes several activities to support this priority. These activities include our 
Housing Rehabilitation and Repair Programs and administration, as well as support of the nonprofit 
agency Consumer Credit Counseling Services. As noted above, the City did not complete rehabilitation or 
repair work on homes in FFY 2017 because of the short timeframe funds were available for expenditure. 
However, the Consumer Credit Counselor office provided financial counseling to 130 people from the 
City of Cedar Falls. 

2. Provide suitable safe living environment integrating low-mod residents. 

During prior years, the City of Cedar Falls utilized five activities to assist with the implementation of this 
objective. These activities include demolition and clearance of vacant and dilapidated 
structures;  Handicap Access Improvements, Sidewalk Reconstruction Program, Park Equipment 
Rehabilitation and Neighborhood Facilities. However, there were no projects completed toward this 
objective as the City transitioned its focus under the CDBG program, as well as addressed project 
eligibility challenges.   

3. Expand economic opportunities through self-supporting wages, home ownership, and empowering 
low-mod income persons to achieve self-sufficiency. 

The City of Cedar Falls funded six service agencies aimed at meeting the objective of providing and 
maintaining support services that help City residents remain independent.  All six agencies are Limited 
Clientele low-to-moderate income providers.  These agencies provided an array of services, including: 
case management for low-moderate income families with children, drug and alcohol dependency 
treatment, financial management, home healthcare, and emergency shelter to the homeless among 
many other services. Each of the selected six service agencies were expected to serve a particular 
number of Cedar Falls residents with the use of CDBG funds. During this past year, five of the six 
agencies exceeded their expected goals with regard to the number of Cedar Falls residents served.  

 

-13-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted 

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 
91.520(a)  

CDBG Persons Households 
White 5,885 2,190 
Black or African American 707 263 
Asian 55 21 
Black/African American and White 194 72 
American Indian, Alaskan, Black or African American 124 46 

Total 6,965 2,592 

Hispanic 6 3 
Not Hispanic 6,959 2,589 

 
Table 2 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds  

 

Narrative 

Of the persons that recieved assistance and services in 2017, 5,885 or 84.49 percent were White and 
707 or 10.15 percent Black or African American. Persons of Asian descent comprised 55 persons or 0.79 
percent, while 194 persons, or 2.7 percent, were Black or African American and White, and 124 persons, 
or 1.7 percent, were American Indian, Alaskan, and Black or African American.  Of the served 
population, only six were reported to be of Hispanic ethnicity. According to Census statistics, these 
figures are for the most part consistent with the overall population percentages, which consists of 93.4 
percent White, 2.1 percent Black or African American and 2 percent of the population being Hispanic. 
Cedar Falls does not have racially/ethnically concentrated areas.   

 

-14-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a) 

Identify the resources made available 
Source of Funds Source Resources Made 

Available 
Amount Expended 

During Program Year 
CDBG CDBG $233,533 $29,720 
HOME HOME $41,901  $0 
HOPWA HOPWA $0  $0  
ESG ESG $0  $0  
Other Other $0  $0  

Table 3 - Resources Made Available 
 
Narrative 

The two primary federal funding resources are the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and 
the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME). The primary objective of the CDBG Program is to 
provide decent housing, a suitable living environment and economic opprotunities for persons of low 
and moderate income levels. The HOME funds are primarily used for the development and 
rehabilitation of affordable rental and ownership housing for low and moderate income housholds. 
During Program Year 2017, the City of Cedar Falls had $233,553 in CDBG funds and $41,901 in HOME 
funds for serving the residents of the City.  

 
Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 

Target Area Planned Percentage of 
Allocation 

Actual Percentage of 
Allocation 

Narrative Description 

City of Cedar Falls 100% 100% See Text Above 
Table 4 – Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 

 

Narrative 

Target Area: Cedar Falls Metro Area (Serving Cedar Falls residents)                              
Planned Percentage of Allocation: 100%                                   
Actual Percentage of Allocation: 100% 

The CDBG and Home funds will be used in the Cedar Falls Metropolitan area as designated. In addition 
to agency awards, the City intends to expend most of the funds from this year for housing rehabilitation 
and repair programs.  Currently, the City has reestablished significant client lists for both of these 
endeavors and is working to implement projects throughout the community. 

-15-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Leveraging 

Explain how federal funds  leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), 
including a description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any 
publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the 
needs identified in the plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub-recipients to obtain other public and 
private resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated Plan.  In program year 2017, 
the City expended $29,720 in CDBG fund with six different agencies serving low-to-moderate 
income persons.  After reviewing reports provided by these agencies, it has determined that 
each has incurred expenses far in excess of their awards in order to offer services to Cedar Falls 
residents.  The table below suggests that for each CDBG dollar awarded, agencies matched 
those funds with approximately $2 from other sources. 

 Agency Award Total Expended Leveraged 
Consumer Credit Counseling $2,000 $2,763.60 $763.60 
Family and Children’s Council $5,720 $10,509.62 $4,789.62 
Cedar Valley Food Bank/Pantry $6,160 $35040.00 $28,880.00 
Pathways Behavioral $5,280 $23,212.67 $17,932.67 
Salvation Army $7,040 $7,051.16 $11.16 
Visiting Nurses Association $3,520 $7,238.00 $3,718.00 
Total $29,720 $85,815.05 $56,095.05 

 
 

-16-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b) 

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the 
number and types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, 
moderate-income, and middle-income persons served. 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 
Number of Homeless households to be 
provided affordable housing units 20 10 
Number of Non-Homeless households to be 
provided affordable housing units 0 0 
Number of Special-Needs households to be 
provided affordable housing units 0 0 
Total 20 10 

Table 5 – Number of Households 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 
Number of households supported through 
Rental Assistance (Section 8 Vouchers) 240 207 
Number of households supported through 
The Production of New Units 0 0 
Number of households supported through 
Rehab of Existing Units 5 0 
Number of households supported through 
Acquisition of Existing Units 0 0 
Total 245 207 

Table 6 – Number of Households Supported 
 

 

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting 
these goals. 

The City’s primary program under the Entitlement Program is the Housing Rehabilitation Program which 
consists of housing rehabilitation and emergency repairs. However, no funds were used for home 
improvements because of the changes experienced by the City, due primarily to staff turnover, 
retirement, and reorganization.  In short, while the City had established goals for Housing Rehabilitation, 
it did not meet them because of internal changes related to how it manages the program.  With that 
said, the City has redoubled its efforts to kickstart the Housing Rehab and Repair programs, as is 
evidenced by the fact the City’s current Rehab list includes 20 properties and the Repair list includes 10 
properties. 

-17-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans. 

A barrier to affordable housing for low-income residents in Cedar Falls has historically been the price of 
homes and land.  Cedar Falls property has a higher price tag than surrounding cities.  Accordingly, low-
income residents are less able to find affordable housing within the community. We will continue to 
work with Habitat for Humanity to assist in their efforts to supply affordable homes to low income Cedar 
Falls residents through the use of HOME and CDBG funds. 

Further, the City has been working hard to reestablish its core Housing Rehabilitation programs in the 
upcoming action plans, as well as explore the possibility of using CDBG funds for new ventures that may 
be developed in the Consolidated Planning process over the course of the next year. 

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons 
served by each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine 
the eligibility of the activity. 

Number of Persons Served CDBG Actual HOME Actual 
Extremely Low-income 3,734 0 
Very Low-income 2,394 0 
Low-income 677 0 
Total 6,808 0 

Table 7 – Number of Persons Served 
 

Narrative Information 

While no rehabilitation or repair projects were completed, the City of Cedar Falls has reestablished, 
rewritten, and updated policies, procedures, and guidelines for doing so.  The City has contracted with 
INRCOG  to manage both programs and applicant lists for each program have been developed.  As 
previously stated, the City and INRCOG are working to expend this year’s funding, along with unspent 
prior years’ funding, for rehabilitation and repair projects over the course of the next fiscal 
year.  Because of the delay establishing the relationship between the City and INRCOG, together with 
unspent funds from prior years, the City will be able to assist more rehab and repair households in 
Federal Fiscal Year 2018 than they normally would be able.   

With that said, Public Service Agencies accounted for the actual number of people served by the 
program during 2017. The agencies served 3,734 extremely low-income persons, 2,394 very low-income 
persons and 677 low-income persons. 

 

-18-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) 

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending 
homelessness through: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 
individual needs 

Needs of the homeless are identified through staff participation in the Black Hawk County Local 
Homeless Coordinating Board.  This advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and 
services.  The Board serves as a large partnership for service providers, policy makers, and 
administrators for addressing housing and homeless services in the area.  The City of Cedar Falls is 
always open to developing new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.     

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The City of Cedar Falls uses CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding to the Salvation Army 
Woman's Shelter, as well as five other agencies that indirectly affect homelessness. The Shelter used the 
funds provided this past year to finance rehabilitation work to the shelter itself. The shelter also 
provides services to assist the women in finding employment and permanent housing. During the 
program year the Salvation Army Woman's Shelter assisted 10 people from the Cedar Falls. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 
low-income individuals and families and those who are:  likely to become homeless after 
being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care 
facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections 
programs and institutions);  and,  receiving assistance from public or private agencies that 
address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs 

CDBG funds are used to fund the Visiting Nurses Association, which provides home healthcare to low 
income elderly and disabled residents. These services allow medically needy residents to remain in their 
homes even when assisted living in required. Funds are also provided to The Family and Children's 
Council which provides counseling services to families and youth. The Family and Children's Council has 
a Parent Connection Program that provides parent education, social support and access to community 
resources thorugh trained staff that meet weekly for a minimum of ninety minutes.  In addition, 
Pathways Behavioral Services offered substance abuse treatment for persons in need, and the Northeast 
Iowa Food Bank/Food Pantry provided foodstuff for households in need of nutrition. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 
with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 
permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 
individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

-19-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 
recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The Salvation Army Shelter provides case management and supportive services to assist homeless 
persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.  Additionally, the City of Cedar Falls has a 
sub-recipient agreement with Consumer Credit Counseling Services to provide budget and credit 
counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, and home ownership counseling to low-and-moderate 
income Cedar Falls residents in order to prevent homelessness.  

 

-20-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) 

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing 

The City of Cedar Falls has no public housing program.  The Low Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls, 
administered by the City of Cedar Falls Community Development Department, administers 326 Section 8 
Housing Choice Vouchers, but with higher rent levels in the community, the City’s goal is 240 units.  
Currently, 207 vouchers are being utilized. The Low-Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls has been rated 
as a high performer, according to the Section 8 Management Assessment Program.   

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in 
management and participate in homeownership 

See Above-Not Applicable 

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs 

See Above-Not Applicable 

-21-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j) 

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as 
barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 
ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 
return on residential investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i) 

The College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan allows property tax exemptions on improvements to property 
located within its boundaries and that meet the following criteria: (1) At least a 10 percent increase in 
the value of residential property or commercial property, if the commercial property consists of 3 or 
more separate living quarters with at least 75% of the space used for residential purposes (buildings 
only); (2) Be located within the Plan Area boundaries; and (3) Must be filed with the City by February 1st 
of the assessment year, for which the exemption is first claimed, but not later than 2 years after the 
February 1st following the year that the improvements are first assessed for taxation. 

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs.  91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Cedar Falls is proactive in attending meetings and networking with service agencies to 
identifiy needs in the community. The City's Code Enforement officer will relay addresses of properties 
that have code violations so the housing staff may offer services to the homeowner. Information 
regarding the CDBG program and Rehabilitation assistance have been marketed in a local newsletter 
called the "Currents". The local newsletter is distributed to Cedar Falls residents and to agencies that 
serve Cedar Falls residents.  The City is also using its website to advertise basic program information, 
application, and the administrative plan associated with the rehabilitation projects. Further, the City is 
utilizing its website to showcase its long-range plans for the CDBG and HOME programs within the 
community. 

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

Lead testing is completed on all home rehabilitation projects through the agreement with the Iowa 
Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) and their sub-provider. After the abatement work 
is completed, the entire property/project is cleaned. At least one hour after the final cleaning a certified 
inspector does a visual examination to ensure there are no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The 
inspector then takes a dust sample from the window troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is 
then tested in accordance with the HUD guidlines. Applicants are also provided the lead paint brochure 
"Protect Your Family From Lead Paint In Your Home". This brochure explains the dangers of lead in the 
home. 

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

As indicated in the current Consolidated and Annual Action Plans, the City of Cedar Falls works to 
eliminate poverty through making housing more affordable, preserving the condition and availability of 

-22-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

existing housing stock, and helping citizens build human, social, financial, physical, and natural 
assets.  This work is completed with the idea that it might address several of the social and economic 
causes of poverty.   

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

As indicated in the Consolidated Plan, the close working relationship between the Cedar Falls City 
Council, Housing Commission and the Community Development staff helps to overcome any potential 
gaps in institutional structure.  Furthermore, City of Cedar Falls staff work closely with the neighboring 
City of Waterloo on projects affecting the metropolitan area.  Finally, the City is building a relationship 
with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments and their staff with regard to implementing 
both CDBG and HOME programs in the community.   

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Cedar Falls Housing Commission consists of a wide variety of residents.  Currently, the 
Commission includes a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher participant, a realtor, a lender, a banker, a 
leader of an affordable housing advocacy group, a retired television and radio executive, and a former 
Public Housing Authority staff member.  This unique composition allows for collaboration and 
communication of potential ideas that address fair housing issues, raise awareness of concern, and 
create working relationships that will help address housing issues. As has been documented, the CIty 
works closely with service agencies to ensure coordination, fill gaps where services are needed, and 
offer feedback regarding underserved needs. 

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the 
jurisdictions analysis of impediments to fair housing choice.  91.520(a) 

The City of Cedar Falls completed an updated Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing in October, 2014 
as part of development of their Consolidated Plan.  The identified impediments to fair housing in Cedar 
Falls and the actions taken to address them include: 

1. There is an inadequate supply of available information relative to accessible dwelling units for persons 
with disabilities. 

The City of Cedar Falls Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program staff is able to identify accessible 
units that may be available at any given time based on previous experience with the various units and 
landlords.  Additionally, landlords post advertisements for available units outside of the Cedar Falls 
Housing Office, as they become available.  

2.  Black households earn significantly less than White households, thus severely limiting housing choice, 
including location. 

-23-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The City of Cedar Falls staff pursues minority business owners’ bids whenever completing Housing 
Rehabilitation projects or contracting for other construction activities.  The City currently has three 
active minority business contractors bidding on CDBG rehabilitation activities, and it continues to 
encourage bidding from all interested contractors. 

3.  Tracking the locations of housing project activities would allow for future comparisons between 
investment locations and impacted areas.   

The City of Cedar Falls staff has always tracked locations of housing projects.   In program year 2009, a 
more thorough tracking system was implemented that allows for mapping of housing projects in 
comparison to low-and-moderate income areas.  Further, as the City’s Geographic Informations Systems 
(GIS) capabilities and access to public information grows, it will be better equipped to geographically 
track and present not only location, but statistics about units in useful formats.   

4.  Mortgage loan denials disproportionately affect racial and ethnic minority groups.  

The City of Cedar Falls funds a non-profit agency, Consumer Credit Counseling Services, that provides 
budget management, credit counseling, and home ownership counseling to low- and moderate-income 
individuals.  During program year 2017, Consumer Credit Counseling Services provided counseling to 130 
Cedar Falls residents.    

5.  High-cost lending disproportionately affects racial and ethnic minority groups.   

The City of Cedar Falls funds a non-profit agency, Consumer Credit Counseling Services, which provides 
budget management, credit counseling, and home ownership counseling to low- and moderate-income 
individuals.  During program year 2017, Consumer Credit Counseling Services provided such counseling 
to five minority residents. 

 

As an aside, these impediments will be updated with the 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan, the process for 
which is currently being developed by the City.     

-24-

Item E.1. 



 CAPER 19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230 

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance 
of the plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs 
involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning 
requirements 

The City of Cedar Falls requires each sub-recipient agency receiving CDBG funds to submit quarterly 
reports and line item requests for reimbursement for the entire fiscal year or the life of their 
project.  The quarterly reports include information on the number of clients served, the racial and ethnic 
information of each client, and income level.  Agencies also include a narrative describing the progress 
the project has made during that quarter.  These reports are reviewed by Cedar Falls and INRCOG staff 
for accuracy before reimbursement may be made to the agency.  

The City of Cedar Falls staff performed in-person monitoring of all six agencies receiving CDBG funds in 
2017.  Agencies’ financial draw documents, client income verifications, and record keeping systems 
were reviewed, along with other contract compliance issues, as may be applicable to each agency.  It is a 
requirement of executing a sub-recipient agreement with the City of Cedar Falls that agencies may 
undergo annual monitoring. Further, representatives of the six agencies met with the City’s Housing 
Commission to discuss how funds were used by the agencies, as well to outline the current and future 
needs of each agency.  

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c) 

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives 
and indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its 
experiences. 

As a result of monitoring, eligibility concerns, and City reprioritization, the City chose to focus funding 
and efforts on Agency Awards and Housing Rehabilitation, while removing Façade and Sidewalk 
programs from consideration for this year. 

Does the grantee have an existing Section 108 guarantee. No 

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) 
grants? 

No 

 [BEDI grantees]  Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year. 

Not Applicable 

-25-

Item E.1. 



 



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2931 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 29-2, DEFINITIONS, OF ARTICLE I, IN 
GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND REPEALING AND REPLACING SECTION 29-168, CBD, 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, 
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 29, ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Central Business District Overlay to provide guidance for building, 

site design standards, maintenance, and development within the district; and 
 
WHEREAS, these amendments clarify the review process and provide more objectivity to the design 

criteria; and 
 
WHEREAS, these amendments outline best practices of storefront design with the intent to continue 

and strengthen the quality of development in the downtown; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed changes to the 

ordinance and recommends approval; and 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby amended as follows: 

 
A. Amend Section 29-2, Definitions, Article I, In General, of Chapter 29, Zoning by adding the following 
definitions: 
 

Façade means the entire exterior wall of a building along a street, including all stories. 

Storefront means the façade of the ground-level story of a building. The area of the storefront will be 
calculated using the first 15 vertical feet of the façade, unless otherwise demonstrated by applicant, 
as evidenced by the storefront cornice height or interior ceiling height. 
 

-27-

Item F.1. 



 2

B. Section 29-168, CBD, Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, of Division 2, Specific Districts, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 29, Zoning is hereby repealed in its entirety and the 
following Section 29-168, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Sec. 29-168. - CBD, Central business district overlay zoning district.  
 

(a)     Purpose and intent. The purpose of the CBD, central business district overlay zoning district 
(hereinafter the "overlay district") is to provide guidance for future development in the specified 
area and to encourage continued successful business development in the downtown Cedar Falls 
area. The overlay district is intended to allow land uses and to encourage appropriate building 
design standards in a manner that complements and strengthens the downtown retail and 
service business sector. Originally developed as a compact, multi-functional, walkable 
environment, the overlay is intended to support pedestrian access and use. The provisions of 
this section shall apply in addition to any other zoning district regulations and requirements in 
which the land may be classified. In case of conflict, the more specific standard shall apply. 

(b)     Boundaries. The CBD, central business district overlay boundaries are generally outlined in the 
image below. The legal description and official zoning map of the overlay is on file in the office of 
the city clerk.  

 
Figure 1 – CBD boundary map 

 (c)  Permitted uses.  

(1)     Allowable uses within the overlay district include typical commercial, professional office 
and service oriented businesses, uses or facilities, including hotels and lodging facilities, 
all such uses currently allowed in the C-1 commercial, C-2 commercial and C-3 
commercial districts unless herein limited. If the underlying zoning district is more 
restrictive than the C-3 commercial district, then only those uses permitted in the more 
restrictive district shall be allowed.  

-28-

Item F.1. 



 3

(2)    Residential uses are allowable subject to planning and zoning commission and city council 
review and approval. No residential use may be established on the ground floor of any 
building within the commercial area bounded by First Street south to Sixth Street from 
Washington Street east to State Street. Residential uses are encouraged to be 
established in upper levels of downtown commercial buildings (hereinafter referred to as 
“mixed-use buildings”).  

(d)  Conditional uses. Where some question arises whether a particular commercial use is 
appropriate within the overlay district, the use may be allowed subject to planning and zoning 
commission and city council review and approval, provided that the proposed use conforms to 
the prevailing character of the downtown area and provided that the use will not necessitate the 
use of outdoor storage areas. In addition, such uses must not generate excessive amounts of 
noise, odor, vibrations or fumes, or truck traffic. If the underlying zoning district is more 
restrictive than the C-3 commercial district, allowable conditional uses will be those generally 
compatible with the more restrictive standards of the underlying zoning district. Examples of 
uses that may be allowed subject to approval of a conditional use permit are:  

(1)  Auto repair shop.  

(2)  Printing or publishing facility.  

(3)  Limited manufacturing activity that is directly related to the operation of a retail business 
conducted on the premises.  

(4)  Plumbing and heating shop.  

(5)  Sign painting shop.  

(6)  Appliance repair shop.  

(7)  Home supply business.  

(e)  Prohibited uses. In all cases the following uses will not be allowed within the overlay district 
either as permitted or conditional uses:  

(1)  Lumber yards.  

(2)  Used or new auto sales lots and displays.  

(3)  Auto body shop.  

(4)  Storage warehouse or business.  

(5)  Mini-storage warehouse.  

(6)  Sheet metal shop.  

(7)  Outdoor storage yard.  

(f)   Site plan review. Any proposed substantially improved or new building structure or development, 
including proposed residential facilities, must submit a detailed site plan and building plans for 
review and approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. Applicants are 
encouraged, but not required, to consult with Community Main Street’s Design Guidelines and 
Design Committee as a design resource. Elements to be considered in this review process are 
proposed use, proposed building improvements or new structural elements, with particular 
attention to exterior building design elements, parking provision (see section 29-177 parking 
regulations), and how the proposed improvement or development will complement existing 
nearby uses and building design elements.  

“Substantial improvement " includes any new building construction within the overlay district or 
any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the exterior appearance 

-29-

Item F.1. 



 4

of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or doors or altering the color or 
exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications 
or replacement of existing facade materials will be considered a substantial improvement. 
Included in this definition are any new, modified or replacement awning structures or similar 
material extensions over the public sidewalk area. A substantial improvement also includes any 
increase or decrease in existing building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or 
appearance. 
 
The following shall be exempt from site plan review: 

(1)      Existing detached single-unit and multi-unit dwellings containing less than seven units; 
not including mixed-use buildings.  

(2)     Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials, awnings, or other minor façade 
elements that do not materially change the appearance, shape or configuration of the 
existing building will not be considered a "substantial improvement".  

(3)     Emergency repairs needed as the result of unanticipated building or facade damages due 
to events such as fire, vandalism, or weather related damages, provided that the needed 
repairs do not alter the appearance of the structure prior to the event causing the 
unanticipated damages. 

 
(g)     Parking: On-site parking in the downtown area will not be required for principal permitted 

commercial, professional office or service business uses or facilities. Any proposed residential 
use established within the overlay district must conform to the parking regulations described in 
section 29-177.  

(h)     Front Setbacks.  

(1)     New commercial and mixed-use buildings shall be placed to the front and corner of lots, 
and set back a minimum of 0 feet and maximum of 10 feet from any street-side lot line.  

(2)     New residential or expansions of residential buildings shall be setback a minimum of 10 
feet.  

(i)    Building design review. All substantially improved or new building structures within the overlay 
district shall be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission and the city council for 
architectural compatibility with surrounding structures. Paramount to this review will be 
consideration of building materials, exterior building materials on all sides, coloration of 
materials, building height, roof line, size and location of windows and doors, roof mounted 
appurtenances, and facades. For the purposes of this section, when a building is located on a 
corner lot the primary street shall be the north-south street, with other streets being considered 
secondary. In addition to consideration of typical physical structural improvements to structures, 
review is also required of any wall painting, mural wall signs or painted artwork or other similar 
applications to exterior walls. The purpose of review of said exterior wall paintings or drawings 
is to ensure that said applications are consistent with the prevailing standards and character of 
the downtown area. The following design elements will be reviewed:  

(1)     Proportion: The relationship of width and height of the front elevations of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. An effort 
should be made to generally align horizontal elements along a street frontage, such as 
cornice lines, windows, awnings and canopies. The relationship of width and height of 

-30-

Item F.1. 



 5

windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. Particular attention must be given to the scale of street level 
doors, walls and windows. Blank walls at the street level are to be discouraged. Elements 
such as windows, doors, columns, pilasters, and changes in materials, artwork, or other 
architectural details that provide visual interest must be distributed across the façade in a 
manner consistent with the overall design of the building.  

(2)    Roof shape, pitch and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch and 
direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. Routine repair and maintenance or replacement of existing roof 
materials will not be subject to review provided that the existing roof line and 
configuration is not altered during the course of said repairs or maintenance.  

(3)    Pattern: Alternating solid surfaces and openings (wall surface versus doors and windows) 
in the front facade, sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. 
This pattern of solid surfaces and openings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building.  

(4)     Building Composition (See Figure 2):  

(i) To create visual interest and visually break up long building walls, facades on 
buildings greater than 50 feet in length shall be divided vertically into bays. 
Façade bays shall be a minimum of 20 feet wide and a maximum 40 feet wide. 
The bays shall be distinctive but tied visually together by a rhythm of repeating 
vertical elements, such as window groupings, pilasters, window bays, balconies, 
changes in building materials and textures, and/or by varying the wall plane of the 
façade.  

(ii) To avoid flat, continuous, and overly long upper floor facades, the maximum 
length of a wall plane of the façade is 60 feet. Articulation between continuous 
upper floor façade sections shall be accomplished by recessing the façade 1 foot 
minimum for a distance of at least 10 feet. This recessed section would count as a 
façade bay per paragraph (i), even if the width is less than 20 feet.   

(iii) Storefronts in mixed-use buildings shall be distinguished from the upper floors by 
a horizontal element, such as a cornice, band board, or soldier course to create a 
distinctive base to the building.  

(iv) For all mixed-use and commercial buildings, the minimum ground floor, floor-to-
structural ceiling height is 14 feet.  

-31-

Item F.1. 



 6

 
Figure 2 – Building composition example 

 
 
(5)     Windows and Transparency: The size, proportion, and type of windows need to be 

compatible with existing neighboring buildings. For storefronts, the following standards 
shall apply:    

(i) A minimum of 70% of the storefront area between 2 and 10 feet in height above 
the adjacent ground level shall consist of clear and transparent storefront 
windows and doors that allow views into the interior of the store. The bottom of 
storefront windows shall be no more than 2 feet above the adjacent ground level, 
except along sloping sites, where this standard shall be met to the extent possible 
so that views into the interior of the store are maximized and blank walls are 
avoided. Exceptions may be allowed for buildings on corner lots where window 
coverage should be concentrated at the corner, but may be reduced along the 
secondary street façade, and for repurposing of buildings not originally designed 
as storefront buildings (e.g. re-purposing of an industrial or institutional building).   

(ii) Transom windows are encouraged above storefront display windows. Residential 
window types, reflective (mirrored), or colored glass are not allowed for 
storefronts.  

(iii) Glazing should be clear and highly transparent to maximize views into the store. 
Low-E or tinted glazing will reduce transparency, so is discouraged for storefront 
windows, but if used, the glass chosen should have a high visible light 
transmittance and low reflectivity.  

(iv) Removing storefront windows or reducing storefront window coverage is 
discouraged and will require Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council 
approval. 

(6)    Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and texture on 
the exterior walls and roofs of the buildings in the immediate area shall be considered in 
the construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration will be considered 
compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in the context of other 
buildings in the immediate area.  

-32-

Item F.1. 



 7

        Street-facing facades shall be comprised of at least 50% brick, stone, or terra cotta. Side 
and rear walls shall be comprised of at least 25% brick, stone, or terra cotta. These high 
quality materials should be concentrated on the base of the building.   

        The following materials may be used in limited amounts:  

(i) Fiber cement, aluminum, metal, pre-formed panels, painted wood, or anything 
similar – Up to 35 percent of any one siding material may be used on the street-
facing façade and up to 40 percent of any other sides. These materials are not 
generally allowed for storefronts. Fiber cement board should be high quality and 
smooth-faced. Metal shall be heavy gauge and non-reflective. Durability and 
maintenance of the metal shall be carefully considered if used in high use areas.  

(ii) Concrete and Precast Concrete- This includes site-poured or preformed concrete 
items. Use is limited to architectural elements such as window hoods, cornices, 
columns, capitals, etc. Architectural CMU may be used in combination with other 
materials such as brick, stone or terra cotta. Except for burnished/polished or 
glazed units, CMU is not generally allowed on the storefront level, however, 
architectural CMU, such as split-face, ground-face, and rock-face, may be used 
as an accent material on the storefront level. 

 
(iii) EFIS may only be used for architectural detailing above the ground floor 
 
(iv) In the case of an unenclosed rear or roof deck, stained wood is permitted.  

 
(7)    Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 

buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
Buildings in the CBD utilize earth and neutral tones; however, other colors can highlight 
the architectural features of a building and are acceptable as accents. Accents generally 
include trim areas and comprise up to 15% of the façade. Painting unpainted brick or 
stone is discouraged. 

(8)    Architectural features: Architectural features including but not limited to cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, fanlights and other elements prevailing in the area 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that the 
details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features shall be suggestive 
of the extent, nature and scale of details that would be appropriate on new buildings or 
associated with building alterations.  

(9)    Building Entries: This section applies to new mixed use and commercial buildings.  

(i)  Primary entries to ground floor building space and to common lobbies accessing 
upper floor building space shall be located along street-facing facades. For 
buildings with more than one street-facing façade, entries along facades facing 
primary streets are preferred. Building entries along rear and side facades or 
from parking garages may not serve as principal building entries. Buildings with 
more than three street-facing facades shall have building entries on at least two 
street-facing sides.  

(ii)  For buildings that contain residential dwelling units, there must be at least one 
main entrance on the street-facing façade or façade facing a prominent 
residential courtyard that provides pedestrian access to dwelling units within the 
building. Access to dwelling units must not be solely through a parking garage or 
from a rear or side entrance.   

-33-

Item F.1. 



 8

(ii) For storefronts with frontage of 100 feet or more, a visible entryway shall be 
provided a minimum of every 50 feet. 

(iii) Entryways into a storefront will be at grade with the fronting sidewalks. 

(iv) Entryways shall be designed to be a prominent feature of the building. The use 
of architectural features such as awnings, canopies, and recessed entries are 
encouraged. 

(10)  Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: These elements shall be 
reviewed to consider the scale, context, coloration and appropriateness of the proposal in 
relation to nearby facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the downtown 
area. Exterior painting of detached single unit and two-unit residential structures within the 
district shall be exempt from this provision. Other multi-unit dwelling structures will be 
subject to this review.  

(j)    Signage. All signage shall conform to requirements of the Cedar Falls sign regulations outlined 
in the Zoning Ordinance Section 29-202, except as provided for below:  

(1)    Freestanding signs:  

(i) When located adjacent to any street other than First Street, shall not exceed 15 
feet in height and 40 square feet in surface area.  

(ii) When located adjacent to First Street, shall not exceed 25 feet in height and 60 
square feet in surface area.  

(iii)  One freestanding or monument sign shall be allowed per lot provided all 
components are entirely on private property. In the case of a double frontage lot, 
a second sign may be considered. 

(iv) Monumental signs: Shall not exceed 8 feet in height and 40 square feet in 
surface area.  

(2)    Projecting signs: One projecting sign per business is permitted on the primary façade. 
Signs which are permitted to encroach over or upon public rights-of-way shall meet the 
following standards and clearance height: 

(i) Vehicular ways: 14 feet clear above the vehicular way, unless public services 
necessitate higher clearance. 

(ii) Pedestrian ways: 10 feet clear above the pedestrian way. For blade signs and 
awnings, the minimum clearance height shall be 8 feet.  

(iii) Blade signs are limited to an area of 4 square feet and a projection of 2.5 feet 
from an exterior wall. 

(iv) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall project no further than half the 
width of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or 5 feet, whichever is less. 

(v) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall be no larger in size than 1 
square foot for each linear foot of the side of the building to which the sign is 
attached, not to exceed 40 square feet per sign face. 

(vi) Corner projecting signs are those that are visible from two or more intersecting 
streets, and shall be allowed as long as they do not exceed 40 square feet per 
sign face. 

(3)    Window Signs and film: Permanent or adhered window signage and film shall not exceed 
25% of glazing of the first 15 vertical feet of wall area and shall not be placed in a manner 
that prevents views into a storefront.  

-34-

Item F.1. 



 9

(4)    Wall Signs: Wall signs shall not exceed 10% of the total wall area, and in no case shall 
exceed 10% of the area of the storefront. Wall signs on storefronts shall not extend 
beyond or above an existing sign band or extend over or detract from the architectural 
features of the building facade, such as cornices, pilasters, transoms, window trim, and 
similar.  

(5)    Billboards: Prohibited 

(6)    Roof signs: Prohibited 

(7)    Illuminated signs: Illuminated signs are permitted. External illumination should be provided 
by a continuous light source directed onto the sign. The use of internally lit signs (back-lit 
plastic) is acceptable for monument and freestanding signs. The use of internally lit wall 
and projecting signs (back-lit plastic) are permitted when the background is opaque at 
night.   

(k)  Removal or demolition of building structures. Removal or demolition of structures within the 
overlay district is allowable, subject to securing a demolition permit with the city inspection 
services division. If no immediate building reconstruction plans are proposed within 30 days 
following building removal or demolition, the site shall be filled and graded to a topographic 
elevation equal to or level with surrounding adjacent property natural grade levels. All drainage 
shall be directed away from existing buildings. Within 30 days of final grading of the site or at the 
earliest opportunity during the growing season conducive to plant germination, the site shall be 
seeded with grass. Reasonable efforts shall be taken by the property owner to ensure proper 
germination of the vegetation and the property owner must maintain the property in accordance 
with city ordinances.  

(l)     Exceptions: The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council may approve deviations 
from the standards if there are characteristics of the site or building that makes it difficult or 
infeasible to meet the requirements outlined in this section, such as buildings located on a corner 
lot, sloping sites, reuse of an existing building that was not originally designed as a storefront 
building, or other similar situation. To be granted an exception the applicant must provide: 

(1)   A detailed explanation of why the specific standard cannot be met;  

(2)   The proposed building is uniquely designed to fit the characteristics of the site and the 
surrounding neighborhood, is consistent with the purpose and intent of the CBD, Central 
Business District Overlay, and will not detract from or be injurious to other properties in the 
vicinity.  

(3)   The Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council may require an alternative design 
solution that is consistent with the intent of the standard being modified.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     September 4, 2018    
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   September 4, 2018    
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       
ADOPTED:          
 

____________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

-35-

Item F.1. 



 



From: Donna [mailto:luckyone@cfu.net]  

Sent: Wednesday, September 12, 2018 10:42 AM 
To: Iris Lehmann 

Subject: Historic Preservation Commission 

 

Dear Iris, 

 

Today will be my last meeting. I am resigning from the Historic Preservation Commission. 

Thank you for the opportunity to learn what the commission supports.  

 

Best, 

Donna Bash 

 

-37-

Item G.1.a. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA, Building Official 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel 
  Bid Opening Approval 
    
 
On Tuesday, August 30th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
Cedar Falls Library Remodeling Project. Seven (7) bids were received from Cardinal 
Construction Co., Don Gardner Construction, Failor Hurley Construction, Huff 
Contracting, Koch Construction, Peters Construction Corp., and The Samuels Group, 
Inc.   
 
The low bid was submitted by Huff Contracting for $103,920.00 which included a 5% bid 
bond. 
 
The project estimate for this project was originally $130,000. Huff Contracting’s bid of 
$103,920 approximately 25% below the project estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your 
reference. 
 
As a result of the bid, the Inspection Services Division, Library Board, and ISG/Struxture 
Architecture recommends acceptance of the low bid from Huff Contracting. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jay Robinson, Library Director 
 
  
 

-39-

Item G.1.b. 



 



-41-

Item G.1.b. 



 



PROJECT:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC LIBRARY REMODELING
Cedar Falls, IA

BID DATE/TIME: THURSDAY, AUGUST 30, 2018 before 2:00:00 P.M. (Local Time)

ARCHITECT: Daniel C. Channer, Principal + Senior Architect P: 319.234.1515

CARDINAL 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

DON GARDNER 
CONSTRUCTION

FAILOR-HURLEY 
CONSTRUCTION

HUFF 
CONTRACTING

KOCH 
CONSTRUCTION

PETERS 
CONSTRUCTION 

CORP.

THE SAMUELS 
GROUP, INC.

LARSON 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

WOODRUFF 
CONSTRUCTION

Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Cedar Falls, IA Waterloo, IA Des Moines, IA Independence, IA Waterloo, IA

5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND - -

1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 - -

December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018

$115,120.00 $112,275.00 $104,570.00 $103,920.00 $124,350.00 $104,888.00 $121,990.00 NO BID NO BID

CARDINAL 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

DON GARDNER 
CONSTRUCTION

FAILOR-HURLEY 
CONSTRUCTION

HUFF 
CONTRACTING

KOCH 
CONSTRUCTION

PETERS 
CONSTRUCTION 

CORP.

THE SAMUELS 
GROUP, INC.

LARSON 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

WOODRUFF 
CONSTRUCTION

APPARENT LOW NO BIDS

CONTRACTOR

GENERAL CONTRACT

ADDENDA

CONTRACTOR COMPLETION DATE

BASIS BID

#21559

BID SECURITY

CONTRACTOR

1 of 1

-43-

Item
 G

.1.b. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  September 10, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closure, Park Drive (Cedar Valley Cyclists King and Queen of the 
Mountain), September 29, 2018. 

-45-

Item G.1.c. 



 



-47-

Item G.1.c. 



-48-

Item G.1.c. 



-49-

Item G.1.c. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  September 13, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

1. Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
2. Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
3. Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
4. The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
5. Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
6. Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (September 21-22, 2018) 
7. Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - new. 

-51-

Item G.1.d. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: September 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Depository Resolution 

 

The attached Depository Resolution is adding Great Western Bank with maximum 
depository limit of $40,000,000.  All other financial institutions will remain the same. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please telephone Finance & Business 
Operations Director Jennifer Rodenbeck at 268-5108 or myself 268-5105.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance & Business Operations Director 
 

-53-

Item G.2.a. 



 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NAMING OFFICIAL DEPOSITORIES  
FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 
approving the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar 
Falls, in conformance with all applicable provisions of the Code of Iowa Chapter 12C (2013), 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 
interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said list of financial institutions, 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

that the following list of financial institutions to be depositories of the City of Cedar Falls, is 
hereby approved and designated officials of the City of Cedar Falls are hereby authorized to 
deposit funds in amounts not to exceed the maximum approved for each respective financial 
institution as set forth below. 
  MAXIMUM MAXIMUM 
 LOCATION OF UNDER THIS UNDER PRIOR 
DEPOSITORY NAME HOME OFFICE RESOLUTION RESOLUTION 

 
BankIowa Waterloo $30,000,000 $30,000,000 
Collins Community Credit Union Cedar Rapids 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Community Bank & Trust Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Farmers State Bank Waterloo 40,000,000 40,000,000 
First National Bank Cedar Falls 30,000,000 30,000,000 
First Security State Bank Evansdale 3,000,000 3,000,000 
Dupaco Community Credit Union Dubuque 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Great Western Bank Sioux Falls, SD 40,000,000 0

 Lincoln Savings Bank Reinbeck 30,000,000 30,000,000 
MidWestOne Bank Iowa City 30,000,000 30,000,000 
NXT Bank Central City  15,000,000 15,000,000 
Regions Bank Birmingham, AL 30,000,000 30,000,000 
University of Iowa Comm. Cr. Union North Liberty 30,000,000 30,000,000 
U.S. Bank N.A. Des Moines 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Veridian Credit Union Waterloo 30,000,000 30,000,000 
Wells Fargo Bank Des Moines 50,000,000 50,000,000 
 

ADOPTED this 17th day of September 2018. 
                                                                                           
              ______________________________ 

                                                                                        James P. Brown, Mayor 
           ATTEST: 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

-55-

Item G.2.a. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

    M E M O R A N D U M
Financial Services Division

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: September 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY2018 Official Financial Report for Streets 

 
Attached for your review is the State required FY2018 City Street Financial Report for 
the City of Cedar Falls.  The report is based on actual FY2018 revenues and 
expenditures relative to various aspects of street operations, maintenance, 
construction, and debt service.  The report is required to be adopted by resolution and 
forwarded to the Iowa Department of Transportation by September 30, 2018.  Failure to 
submit the report may cause delay or suspension of future State payments of Road Use 
Tax Funds to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me.  Thank you. 
 
 
Attachment 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director Finance & Business Operations 
  
 
 

-57-

Item G.2.b. 



 



-59-

Item G.2.b. 



-60-

Item G.2.b. 



-61-

Item G.2.b. 



-62-

Item G.2.b. 



-63-

Item G.2.b. 



-64-

Item G.2.b. 



-65-

Item G.2.b. 



-66-

Item G.2.b. 



-67-

Item G.2.b. 



-68-

Item G.2.b. 



-69-

Item G.2.b. 



-70-

Item G.2.b. 



206 Main Street, Suite B
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
communitymainst@cfu.net
www.communitymainstreet.org

206 Main Street, Suite B
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
cmsinfo@cfu.net
www.communitymainstreet.org

2018-2019
Board of Directors:
Ty Kimble - Chair
Dan Lynch
Crystal Ford
Jess Marsh
Audrey Dodd
Matt Dunning
Wynette Froehner
Amy Mohr
Clark Rickard
Stephanie Sheetz
Julie Shimek
Brad Strouse
Pam Taylor
Tony Tomlyanovich
Dawn Wilson

Liaisons:
LeaAnn Saul- Past Chair
Craig Berte
Cary Darrah
Carrie Eilderts
Linda Laylin
Kim Manning
Jessica Rucker
Kathryn Sogard

September 13, 2018

Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck
Finance Manager/City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Re:  Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District

Dear Ms. Rodenbeck:

The downtown SSMID was originally established in 1987 with the purpose to 
provide funding for Community Main Street, Inc. (CMS). Downtown property 
owners have opted to renew SSMID, as required by the State statue, every five 
years since inception with the intent to continue financial support of CMS.  

Community Main Street has initiated the renewal process to continue the 
established SSMID.  Pending this renewal, provisions of the SSMID district for 
the period of July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2022, Cedar Falls Community 
Main Street is responsible to determine the SSMID millage rate each year.  CMS 
would propose that the SSMID collected for the 2019/2020 fiscal year at the rate 
of $3.89 per $1000 of assessed property value for commercial properties within 
the district.  This rate provides funding equal to the previous SSMID period.  

Please feel free to contact me at 277-0213 if you have any questions.  Thank 
you.

Sincerely,

Carol Lilly, Director
Community Main Street, Inc.

-71-

Item G.2.c. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Information Systems Division

 
 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: September 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Purchase of New Agenda Management Software 

 
 
The City’s current agenda management software, SIRE, was sold to Hyland in 2012.  At that time, Hyland 
decided to continue support, but decided against any additional updates to it.  As the technology 
progresses around it, SIRE is fast becoming obsolete.  It is currently running on a server that is no longer 
supported.  Therefore, we felt it best to investigate options to upgrade the agenda management software 
this year to replace SIRE before the maintenance agreement expires in December.  
 
We attended webinars on multiple agenda management vendors to investigate options.  Here are the 
quotes that we received:   
 
Vendor Cost 

Municode  $5,600 / year maintenance 1-4 years, 5% increase beyond 

*includes video streaming using YouTube channel 

CivicClerk   $7,200 / year maintenance 

$10,850 implementation and 1st year maintenance 

*additional cost for video streaming 

Navient/Hyland Migrate SIRE  $8,048 / year maintenance 

$19,650 for purchase 

*additional cost for video streaming 

Granicus $7,920 first year maintenance ($8,500 2nd yr, $9,067 3rd yr) 

$5,750 purchase 

*additional cost for video streaming 

 

After attending demos and scoring the two lowest cost products, we are recommending changing the 

agenda management software to Municode. This option will utilize Channel 15’s YouTube channel to 

stream the meetings at no additional cost.  City staff will continue to time stamp meeting video, although 

these services can be provided by Municode at an additional cost.  

 

The agreement has been reviewed by City Attorney Rogers and is attached for your approval.  

 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this purchase, please feel free to contact me at 268-
5111. 
 
Attachments:  Municode Meetings Quote Cedar Falls Iowa 

-73-

Item G.2.d. 



 



 
 

MEETING & AGENDA MANAGEMENT 
Quote: Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 
 

 

 
Leon Rogers 

PO Box 2235 Tallahassee, FL 32316 

850.692.7708 leon@municode.com 

          

-75-

Item G.2.d. 



 PAGE | 2 
 

 

INTRODUCTION LETTER 
 

August 13, 2018 

 

Julie Sorenson 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 

 

Dear Julie: 

Thank you for the opportunity to present Cedar Falls with our quote for online meeting and agenda management 
services.  Our Municode MEETINGS solution will streamline your process to create, approve and post meeting 
agendas and minutes. 

Municode has developed a portfolio of online services that are tailored for local government agencies. We have 
worked with cities, towns, villages, counties and other local government agencies for over sixty-five years 
continually striving to make your job easier. When it comes to the meeting management process, our solution is 
simple and straight-forward, yet robust enough to satisfy the needs of our largest municipalities. 

We are also working on an exciting product roadmap to seamlessly integrate Municode MEETINGS with our suite 
of online municipal solutions. In the not-too-distant-future, our Municode MEETINGS solution will integrate with 
Municode WEB.  Meetings created in Municode MEETINGS will auto-post to your Municode WEB website 
calendar.  This integration will also include unified search – your meeting agendas and minutes will be searchable 
directly from the website, with our industry leading search engine. This feature will make it easy and simple for 
your citizens and staff to find the information they need.   

We are also building a powerful integration that will enable you to mark ordinance agenda items as ‘approved’ 
within Municode MEETINGS and have them auto-scheduled for supplementation and publishing to your 
Municode NEXT Online Code of Ordinances. 

These are just a few of the innovative integrations and features that we will be rolling out over the coming 
months. 

We are thrilled at the opportunity to partner with Cedar Falls on such an important initiative. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Brian Gilday 

President, Municode WEB 

  

-76-

Item G.2.d. 



 PAGE | 3 
 

MEETING MANAGEMENT FEATURES 

Base Features 

 Unlimited Meetings 

 Unlimited Meeting Agenda Templates 

 Unlimited Users 

 Meeting Storage for 10 years 

 Create Meetings 

 Submit/Add Agenda Items 

 Attach agenda item files 

 Create Agendas 

 Create Agenda Packets 

 Approve Items with Approval Workflow 

 Create Meeting Minutes 

 Automatically Publishing to the Web – 
Agenda, Agenda Packet, Minutes 

 

 

 Self-service video time stamping – you can 
add timestamps of your meeting agenda 
items to your YouTube meeting videos 

 Voting/Roll Call 

 Integration with Municode Web website 
calendar (coming soon) 

 99.9% up-time guarantee, telephone 
support 8AM-8PM Eastern 

 Email support with one-hour response time 
during working hours 

 Emergency 24x7 support 

 Up to 3 hours of webinar refresher training 
per year 

SERVICE AND SUPPORT 
  Guaranteed Uptime 

We will guarantee service uptime of 99.99%.  In the event this service level is not met within a given month, 
you will receive a credit for that month's service. 

  24x7 Customer support:    
We will provide you contact numbers to reach us 24x7x365 for catastrophic site issues. We will also be 
available from Monday to Friday 8AM-8PM EST via email and phone to handle routine questions from staff. 

  Security upgrades:    
We will perform security upgrades and other optimizations during off-hours, typically between the hours of 
12-3AM PST, if such work requires your meetings to be off-line.  We will provide at least 14 days’ notice for 
any non-emergency maintenance that requires down-time. 

   Site Monitoring and Site Recovery:   
Our auto-monitoring software continually monitors performance and instantly alerts us when problems occur.   
We act as soon as possible and no later than two hours after problems are detected. 

  

-77-

Item G.2.d. 



 PAGE | 4 
 

FEES 

Annual Subscription       $5,600 per year 

One-time Project Setup       no charge  

• Configure Boards/Committees/Commissions     

• Configure Meeting Agenda Templates 

• Setup Users, Roles, and Permissions 

• Conduct initial training – web teleconference 

Additional Options 

  “Hands free” YouTube Video time stamping (up to 36 meetings)  $1,800 per year 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Year 1  

• Sign contract         $0 

• Configure system and complete initial training (annual subscription begins) $5,600 
Total $5,600 

Years 2-4 
• $5,600 per year  
 

Years 5+  
• Annual subscription increases in year 5 by five percent.  It increases in subsequent years according to the 
prevailing consumer price index (CPI). 

 

This quote is valid for a period of ninety (90) days.  

-78-

Item G.2.d. 



 PAGE | 5 
 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
This agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is entered between Cedar Falls, Iowa (“CLIENT”) and Municipal Code Corporation 
(“CONSULTANT”).   

1. Term of AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT shall commence effective the date signed by the CLIENT.  It shall 
automatically renew annually.   This AGREEMENT shall terminate upon the CLIENT's providing CONSULTANT with 
sixty (60) days' advance written notice 

2. Compensation.  It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto, that the CLIENT shall pay the 
CONSULTANT for services based on the payment schedule provided as set forth in the section marked “Payment 
Schedule”.  Payment will be made to CONSULTANT within thirty (30) days of the receipt of approved invoices for 
services rendered. 

3. Scope of Services. CONSULTANT’s services under this AGREEMENT shall consist of services as detailed in the 
attached proposal including appendices (“SERVICES”).  SERVICES may be amended or modified upon the mutual 
written AGREEMENT of the parties. 

4. Integration. This AGREEMENT, along with the SERVICES to be performed contain the entire agreement 
between and among the parties, integrate all the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, 
and supersede all prior written or oral discussions or agreements between the parties or their predecessors-in-
interest with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. 

5. Warranty.  CONSULTANT warrants that any services provided hereunder will be performed in a professional 
and workmanlike manner and the functionality of the services will not be materially decreased during the term.  

6. Liability.  CONSULTANT’s total liability arising out of any acts, omissions, errors, events, or default of 
CONSULTANT and/or any of its employees or contractors shall be limited by the provisions of the AGREEMENT 
and further limited to a maximum amount equal to the fees received by CONSULTANT from CLIENT under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7. Termination.  This AGREEMENT shall terminate upon the CLIENT's providing CONSULTANT with sixty (60) days' 
advance written notice.  In the event the AGREEMENT is terminated by the CLIENT's issuance of said written 
notice of intent to terminate, the CONSULTANT shall pay CLIENT a pro-rated refund of any prepaid service fees 
(for the period from the date of the termination through to the end of the term).  If, however, CONSULTANT has 
substantially or materially breached the standards and terms of this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT shall have any 
remedy or right of set-off available at law and equity.  

8. Independent Contractor. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor.  Notwithstanding any provision 
appearing in this AGREEMENT, all personnel assigned by CONSULTANT to perform services under the terms of this 
AGREEMENT shall be employees or agents of CONSULTANT for all purposes.  CONSULTANT shall make no 
representation that it is the employee of the CLIENT for any purposes. 

9. Confidentiality.   (a) Confidential Information.  For purposes of this AGREEMENT, the term "Confidential 
Information" means all information that is not generally known by the public and that: is obtained by 
CONSULTANT from CLIENT, or that is learned, discovered, developed, conceived, originated, or prepared by 
CONSULTANT during the process of performing this AGREEMENT, and relates directly to the business or assets of 
CLIENT. The term "Confidential Information" shall include, but shall not be limited to: inventions, discoveries, 
trade secrets, and know-how; computer software code, designs, routines, algorithms, and structures; product 
information; research and development information; lists of clients and other information relating thereto; 
financial data and information; business plans and processes; and any other information of CLIENT that CLIENT 
informs CONSULTANT, or that CONSULTANT should know by virtue of its position, is to be kept confidential.   

  

-79-

Item G.2.d. 



 PAGE | 6 
 

(b) Obligation of Confidentiality.  During the term of this AGREEMENT, and always thereafter, CONSULTANT 
agrees that it will not disclose to others, use for its own benefit or for the benefit of anyone other than CLIENT, or 
otherwise appropriate or copy, any Confidential Information except as required in the performance of its 
obligations to CLIENT hereunder. The obligations of CONSULTANT under this paragraph shall not apply to any 
information that becomes public knowledge through no fault of CONSULTANT. 

10.  Assignment.   Neither party may assign or subcontract its rights or obligations under this AGREEMENT 
without prior written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, either party may assign this AGREEMENT in its entirety, without consent of the other party, in 
connection with a merger, acquisition, corporate reorganization, or sale of its assets.    

11.  Cooperative Purchasing.   CONSULTANT and CLIENT agree that other public agencies may purchase goods 
and services under this solicitation or contract at their own cost and without CONSULTANT or CLIENT incurring 
any financial or legal liability for such purchases. 

12. Governing Law.  This AGREEMENT shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Iowa without resort to any jurisdiction’s conflicts of law, rules or doctrines. 

 

Submitted by: 

Municipal Code Corporation 

By:  __________________________________ 

Title: President, Municode WEB                                

 

Accepted by: 

By:  __________________________________ 

Title:                                                                                

Date:                                                                               

 

 

-80-

Item G.2.d. 



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 28, 2018 

Re: Consolidated Communications Agreement 

Attached you will find a revised Consolidated Public Safety Communications 28E 
Agreement. A similar agreement is currently in place and governs the operation of the 
consolidated county wide dispatch center. This new agreement has some minor 
changes in the billing process. The bills had been routed from dispatch to Emergency 
Management then to Black Hawk County for payment. The bills are routed from dispatch 
directly to County for payment.  

I recommend approval of the agreement. 

-81-

Item G.2.e. 



 



  

CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS 28E AGREEMENT 
 
 

ARTICLES  of   28E  AGREEMENT  made  and  entered   into  this     1 s t     day  of    August   ,   2018,  
by  and between    the   parties, Black Hawk County, hereafter referred to   as   "County";  the   City   of 
Waterloo,   hereafter referred to as ''Waterloo";  the  City  of  Cedar   Falls,  hereafter referred to as "Cedar   
Falls";  the  City of Evansdale, hereafter referred   to  as  "Evansdale"; the  City of Hudson, hereafter 
referred to as  "Hudson"; the  City  of  La Porte  City,  hereafter   referred   to  as "La Porte"; the City  of  
Dunkerton, hereafter referred to as "Dunkerton"; and the City of Gilbertville, hereafter referred  to as 
"Gilbertville"; or such  of them  as may  become  signatories hereto. 

 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE 1: PURPOSE 

For   the    purpose    of    gaining     economy    of    operations   while    maintaining   improving,     and 
coordinating  the  professional  dispatching  of  public   safety   services   in  Black   Hawk  County,   the 
Consolidated  Public  Safety    Communications  Center, hereafter   referred  to   as   the   "Center"    is 
hereby  created.   The  Center   shall   be  operated   and   maintained  pursuant   to  this  Agreement   and 
shall  provide  dispatch   and  communications  services  to  all  participating   government agencies in Black 
Hawk County. 

 
ARTICLE 2: PLACE  OF OPERATION 

 
The  Center  shall be housed at County expense i n  a facility provided by Black Hawk County. However,    
utilities.   Cleaning, remodeling and   such   other   expense    attributable  to  the   Center operations 
will be prorated  among  the parties. 

 
ARTICLE 3:  LEGAL  STATUS 

 
No   separate   legal   entity   under   Iowa   law   is  created    nor   is   any   obligation    incurred   by  the 
participating  parties  other      than   those   specified    in   this   Agreement  or  as   may   be  added   by 
amendment  properly   executed   in the  manner   hereafter  provided.   This Agreement  is intended   to 
obligate  the participants pursuant  to Chapter  28E of the Code of Iowa. 

 
ARTICLE 4.  COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

 
Center  operations shall  commence on  a date  determined  by  the  Center   Board.  Start-up  costs  and 
costs  incurred  in implementing this  Agreement  shall  be advanced   by the  County  and  reimbursed 
according to the  formula   set  out  in this  Agreement  if some  or all  of the  funding  anticipated  has 
not   yet   been   received   at   time   of  commencement.  The   entities   providing the   funds   shall   be 
reimbursed proportionately. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5: DURATION 
 

The duration  and existence  of this Agreement  shall  be for a period of one year with automatic renewal 
unless  terminated  by  the  parties  according  to  the  terms  of  the  Agreement   hereafter  provided.  The 
attached assessments shall be reviewed every three years. 

-83-

Item G.2.e. 



  

ARTICLE 6: CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER BOARD 
 

SECTION  l: There  is hereby  created  a Consolidated   Public  Safety  Communications   Center  Board, 
herein referred  to as the Center  Board, which shall  be operated  pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 2: An eleven-member Public Safety Communications Center  Board (hereafter  referred to as 
the "Center Board") composed  of: the Black Hawk  County  Sheriff, the City of Waterloo Fire Chief, the 
City of Waterloo  Police Chief,  the City of Cedar  Falls Police Chief, the City of Cedar  Falls Fire Chief, 
the City of Evansdale  Police  Chief,  the City of  Hudson  Police Chief, the City of La Porte City Police 
Chief, the City of Dunkerton Police Chief,  the  City  of  Gilbertville  Police  Chief,  and  one  Fire  Chief 
representing the  other  fire departments "whose home base is within a city that  is located in Black Hawk 
County, is hereby created. 

 
SECTION 3: The Center Board shall adopt, establish and approve all policies and procedures and be 
responsible  for the operation  of the Center  subject  to the limitations  and dispute resolution  procedures 
of  this  agreement,  except  that  the  Center  Board  shall  adopt  Black  Hawk County  Personnel  Policies, 
which shall be applicable to all Center personnel. 

 
SECTION 4: The position of Chairperson of the Center Board shall be selected by the Center Board on a 
majority vote on an annual basis. The Chairperson,  through  the Center  Administrative  Supervisor,  shall 
cause  minutes  of   the  Center   Board  meetings  to  be prepared   and  distributed   to  the  Center   Board 
members   and  the  participating  cities'   Mayors   and  the  County  Board  of  Supervisors.   Each Center 
Board member shall be entitled to one vote.   All meetings shall be governed by the parliamentary 
procedures set forth in Robert's Rules of Order. 

 
SECTION  5:  The  meetings   of  the  Center   Board  shall  be  public  proceedings   subject  to  the  Iowa 
Open Meetings  Law. To  the  extent  allowed  by the  Iowa  Open  Records  Law, the  minutes and records 
of the Center  shall be public. 

 
ARTICLE   7:  CONSOLIDATED 
OVERSIGHT   BOARD 

PUBLIC  SAFETY  COMMUNICATIONS  BUDGET 

 
SECTION  1:  A  Consolidated  Public  Safety   Communications  Budget   Oversight  Board  (herein-
after  referred   to  as  the  Oversight  Board)   composed  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors (who 
collectively shall  have  only  one  vote)  and  the Mayors  of the participating  cities  is hereby  created. 
This  Board   shall  be  called   together   by  the  Chairperson  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors  in 
November   of   each   year    for   the   purpose    of   discussing  and   approving  the   budget    of   the 
Communications  Center    as   proposed    by   the   Center    Board   for   the   coming  fiscal   year.  The 
Chairperson shall cause minutes of the Oversight Board meetings to be prepared and distributed to the 
Oversight Board  members. Each  Oversight Board  member  shall  be entitled   to one  vote,  except the 
County  Board  of Supervisors, who  collectively shall  have only  one vote. All meetings  shall  be 
governed by the parliamentary procedures set forth  in Robert's Rules  of Order. 

 
SECTION 2: The  Chairperson  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors may  call  additional   meetings 
from  time  to time  to discuss concerns. In the event of the unavailability of the Chairperson of the 
County    Board    of   Supervisors,   any   two   Mayors   of   participating cities   may    call   a special 
meeting. 

 
SECTION 3: The meetings of the Budget Oversight Board shall be public proceedings subject to the 
Iowa   Open   Meetings Law.     To the extent   allowed   by the   Iowa Open   Records   Law, the minutes 
and the records of the Center shall be public. 

-84-

Item G.2.e. 



  

 
 

ARTICLE 8: COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT 
 

SECTION   1: All the  usual   and  customary  administrative, personnel,   civil  service   regulations, 
accounting, budgetary, and  procurement policies  of Black  Hawk  County  shall  govern  the Center  in 
its operations and  activities unless  they  conflict   with  policies  and  procedures adopted  pursuant to 
this Agreement.   Established collective bargaining agreements shall also supersede any Center Board 
policies or procedures.  In the event of a conflict, except with regard to collective bargaining matters, the 
conflict resolution procedures of Article 8 shall apply. 

 
SECTION 2: The  day-to-day   operation  of  the  Center  shall  be  under  the  direction,  supervision  and 
management of the Chairperson  of the Board, who shall delegate such authority for the operation and 
management of the Center as he or she deems appropriate, with the consent of the Center Board.  The power 
of delegation includes the power to direct and control all Center personnel and operations of the Center 
pursuant to the operating procedures established by the Center Board. 

 
SECTION 3: The management  staff of the Center  shall be appointed  by the Center  Board, which will 
also  have  the  authority  to  remove  an employee  from  a  position  with  the  Center  for reasons deemed 
sufficient by the Center Board. The management staff of the Center shall be supervised by the Chairperson of 
the Center Board on behalf of the Center Board, subject to County policies as set out herein. Center 
management  shall comply  with all administrative,   personnel,  accounting,  budgetary and  procurement 
policies  of  Black  Hawk  County  unless they  conflict  with  policies  and   procedures  contained  in  this 
agreement. 

 
SECTION 4: The Chairperson of the Center Board shall appoint a Personnel Committee f r o m the 
members of the Center Board. The Board Personnel Committee shall be responsible for all hiring and 
termination of Center employees as well as the issuance of disciplinary actions to Center employees.   All 
actions of the Personnel Committee regarding hiring and termination of Center employees shall be ratified 
by the Center Board. 

 

 
 

ARTICLE 9: COUNTY EMPLOYEES 
 

All Center employees,   including the management   staff, shall be employees of Black Hawk County. Payroll 
and terms of employment shall be administered by Black Hawk County. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 10: FINANCING 
 

The costs shares of the participants, the method of payment.  and special  financing  arrangements  and 
ownership  of  property  shall   be  as  follows:   All  personnel,  equipment,  and  operating  costs  shall  be 
advanced  by and  billed  through Black  Hawk  County.  The participants  shall reimburse Black  Hawk 
County for same as set forth  in the  attached  Exhibit  A that  represents  each jurisdiction's  share  of 
personnel  costs.  The E91l board  will  pay  for  100 percent  of all  E91l   related  costs  that  are eligible  
under  Iowa  Code Chapter 
34A to be recovered from the subscriber   access charge.  Related E9l1 costs which are construed by this 
agreement to be included are, but not limited to, the installation of all necessary communications 
equipment  and on-going  system  maintenance. 

-85-

Item G.2.e. 



  

Reimbursement  to Black  Hawk  County by  the  participants shall  be  determined   as  follows:  Each 
participant’s  percentage  shall  be based  on a three-year  average of calls for service  for that agency.  
Those percentages  will then be set  for the next three  years. After that  period  of   time,  the  percentages  
will  be  reviewed  and  recommendations   will   be  made  at  that time.  The  Center's  Board  will  apply  
these  percentages   and  submit  the calculations,  along with  their proposed  budget,  to  member   
governmental   bodies   and  the  Budget  Oversight   Review   Board  by November   I     of  each   year.   
This  will  provide   sufficient   time  for   review   and   approval   by  each representative agency prior to 
the certification  of their respective  fiscal year budgets. 

 
ARTICLE  11:  BUDGET PREPARATION 

 
SECTION 1 :  The  annual  operating  budget  shall  be prepared  by  the Administrative   Supervisor  and 
submitted  to the Center Board for preliminary  approval  in October of each year. 

 
SECTION 2: Copies  of  the  projected  costs  for  each  agency   for  each  fiscal  year  will  be g1ven to 
each representative  agency as part of the budget process  as stated in Article  I. 

 
SECTION 3:  By  November of each   year,  the   Chairperson  of  the  Center   Board   will   forward 
the preliminary  budget,  along  with  the assessment factor,  to the  Budget  Oversight Board  for their 
approval,  as laid out in Article  7. 

 
SECTION 4:  By  December   of  each  year,  the  Chairperson   of  the  Black   Hawk  County   Board  of 
Supervisors  shall  forward  the  approved  Center  Budget  to  the  County F i n a n c e  D i r e c t o r  for 
submission  as part of the budget  of Black Hawk County and to the County Auditor for billing. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  12:  INSURANCE 
 

The Center  Board  shall  seek  and   maintain  liability  or  comprehensive   insurance  coverage for  Center 
operations  and  costs  for  same  shall  be  divided  and  shared  as  provided for  herein.    Any participant 
may elect to obtain  its own coverage  for any separate  liability  it may have for Center operations. 

 
ARTICLE  13: DISPUTE  RESOLUTION 

 
In the event  of  a dispute  between  the  Center  Board,  the  County  and  the  Cities,  the  dispute  may be 
submitted  to  arbitration.  In  order  to  quality as a  dispute,  the  matter  must involve  the  center budget, 
center operation,  or  the  terms  of  this  agreement.   At least  four  participants  from   the Center  Board, 
County, or  the Cities  are  required to  request that the  matter be submitted for arbitration. 

 
The parties hereto agree that such a  dispute between  them  shall be resolved  by arbitration pursuant to 
and  as  authorized  by  Chapter   679A,  Code  of  Iowa,  2013. In  the  event  of  such  a dispute  to  be 
submitted  for arbitration,  the  District  Court  shall  be requested  to appoint  three  (3) arbitrators  to hear 
the matter. 

 
ARTICLE 14: TERMINATION 

 
 

SECTION  1:  Any party to  this  agreement  may terminate  its  participation herein  by giving at  least 
twelve (12)  month's   prior written notice to all the other parties.  Termination  of  the withdrawing  party 
shall be effective  at the beginning  of the next fiscal  year following  the twelve (12) month  notice. 

-86-

Item G.2.e. 



  

SECTION  2:  Termination  shall   not   relieve  the   County,  Cities,  or  the   E911  Board   of  
any financial obligation  incurred  before  the   effective  termination  date under   the   terms of  
this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3: Equipment  and  furniture owned  solely  by  the  County,   Cities,  or  E911  Board  
shall be distributed  according  to  the  inventory   of  the  Center   Board.  Equipment  and  furniture  
owned jointly    shall  be  distributed  in  a  manner   consistent  with  the  basis  of  the  member's 
contribution. Distribution  shall  be  based   upon  a  majority   vote  of  all  members  eligible  to  vote  
on  the  Center Board.  Where  full  agreement  is  not  reached, the  equipment  and furniture shall  
be liquidated  and the proceeds  distributed to the parties  to the Agreement prorated  upon the same 
basis that the parties contributed to the purchase of the equipment and furniture. 

 
SECTION 4:  The Center   Board   shall   not   be dissolved   when   there   remains   any   indebtedness 
incurred by the Center Board. 

 
ARTICLE 15: AMENDMENTS 

 
The terms of this Agreement shall be amended onlv upon approval of any proposed  amendment  by a 
simple majority resolution  of the participants. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 

 
If any  provision  of this  Agreement  or  the  application  thereof  to any  person  or circumstance   is 
held invalid,  such  invalidity   shall  not  affect  other  provisions of  application   of this  Agreement  
which can be given   effect  without  the  invalid  provisions  or  application  and  to  this end  the  
provisions  of this Agreement  are declared  to be severable. 

 
ARTICLE 17:  ADOPTION 

 
This  Agreement  shall  have  full  force  and  effect   upon  ratification  by  a  county  of  the  
participants. except  that  it shall  not  be effective  unless ratified  by  Black  Hawk  County, the City of 
Waterloo, and the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
 
Amendment dated this _1st____ day of ___August_, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-87-

Item G.2.e. 



  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA     CITY OF WATERLOO, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                         Signature                     Signature 
 
_____________________  Chairperson    __________________________  Mayor
 Printed name       Printed name 
 
Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________
         Signature                     Signature  
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA     CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                      Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name           Printed name 
 

Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________ 
 Signature                     Signature 
  
 
CITY OF HUDSON, IOWA     CITY OF LAPORTE CITY, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                     Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name           Printed name 

 
Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________  

Signature                         Signature 
 
 
CITY OF DUNKERTON, IOWA     CITY OF GILBERTVILLE, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                             Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name                       Printed name 

 
Attest:________________________                                                   Attest:________________________ 
  Signature  Signature 
 
 
 

-88-

Item G.2.e. 



  

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 
 
 
 

CALL FOR SERVICE PERCENTAGE 
 
 
 

For FY 19, FY20, and FY21 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Waterloo 61.09% 

 
City of Cedar Falls 

 
19.83% 

 
Black Hawk County 

 
10.96% 

 
City of Evansdale 

 
4.21% 

 
City of La Porte City 

 
1.69% 

 
City of Hudson 

 
1.59% 

 
City of Dunkerton 

 
.25% 

 
City of Gilbertville 

 
.38% 

 
 
 
 
 
These percentages are for a three-year period and will 
be reviewed again in f iscal  year 2021 for the fiscal 
years 2022, 2023 and 2024. 

-89-

Item G.2.e. 



 



-91-

Item G.2.f. 



 



-93-

Item G.2.f. 



-94-

Item G.2.f. 



-95-

Item G.2.f. 



-96-

Item G.2.f. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA, Building Official 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel 
  Bid Opening Approval 
    
 
On Tuesday, August 30th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
Cedar Falls Library Remodeling Project. Seven (7) bids were received from Cardinal 
Construction Co., Don Gardner Construction, Failor Hurley Construction, Huff 
Contracting, Koch Construction, Peters Construction Corp., and The Samuels Group, 
Inc.   
 
The low bid was submitted by Huff Contracting for $103,920.00 which included a 5% bid 
bond. 
 
The project estimate for this project was originally $130,000. Huff Contracting’s bid of 
$103,920 approximately 25% below the project estimate. Attached is a bid tab for your 
reference. 
 
As a result of the bid, the Inspection Services Division, Library Board, and ISG/Struxture 
Architecture recommends acceptance of the low bid from Huff Contracting. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jay Robinson, Library Director 
 
  
 

-97-

Item G.2.g. 



 



-99-

Item G.2.g. 



 



PROJECT:

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC LIBRARY REMODELING
Cedar Falls, IA

BID DATE/TIME: THURSDAY, AUGUST 30, 2018 before 2:00:00 P.M. (Local Time)

ARCHITECT: Daniel C. Channer, Principal + Senior Architect P: 319.234.1515

CARDINAL 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

DON GARDNER 
CONSTRUCTION

FAILOR-HURLEY 
CONSTRUCTION

HUFF 
CONTRACTING

KOCH 
CONSTRUCTION

PETERS 
CONSTRUCTION 

CORP.

THE SAMUELS 
GROUP, INC.

LARSON 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

WOODRUFF 
CONSTRUCTION

Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Waterloo, IA Cedar Falls, IA Waterloo, IA Des Moines, IA Independence, IA Waterloo, IA

5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND 5%-BID BOND - -

1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 1 & 2 - -

December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018 December 14, 2018

$115,120.00 $112,275.00 $104,570.00 $103,920.00 $124,350.00 $104,888.00 $121,990.00 NO BID NO BID

CARDINAL 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

DON GARDNER 
CONSTRUCTION

FAILOR-HURLEY 
CONSTRUCTION

HUFF 
CONTRACTING

KOCH 
CONSTRUCTION

PETERS 
CONSTRUCTION 

CORP.

THE SAMUELS 
GROUP, INC.

LARSON 
CONSTRUCTION 

CO.

WOODRUFF 
CONSTRUCTION

APPARENT LOW NO BIDS

CONTRACTOR

GENERAL CONTRACT

ADDENDA

CONTRACTOR COMPLETION DATE

BASIS BID

#21559

BID SECURITY

CONTRACTOR

1 of 1

-101-

Item
 G

.2.g. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA, Building Official 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel 
  Contract Documents 
 
 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, Performance and Payment Bonds, 
Certificate of Insurance for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project from Huff 
Contracting.   
 
The Inspection Services Division and Library Board recommend approving and 
executing the contract with Huff Contracting for the construction of the Public Library 
Remodel Project. This project is to construct a co-lab space within the existing library on 
the second floor. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jay Robinson, Library Director 
 

-103-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-105-

Item G.2.h. 



-106-

Item G.2.h. 



-107-

Item G.2.h. 



-108-

Item G.2.h. 



-109-

Item G.2.h. 



-110-

Item G.2.h. 



-111-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-113-

Item G.2.h. 



-114-

Item G.2.h. 



-115-

Item G.2.h. 



-116-

Item G.2.h. 



-117-

Item G.2.h. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Project Supervisor 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement #1 
  Henry Property Traffic Study 
  Project No. EN-289-3167 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure and Environment, LLC. on July 16, 2018 for the peer review of the 
proposed Henry Property Development.  
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 1 with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC. for the additional peer review of 
the proposed Henry Property Development.  
 
The cost of this project falls within our Engineering budget under account 101-2225-
432.86-25 Engineering and Architecture. The cost of this agreement is in the amount 
not to exceed $3,640. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC for 
additional services on the Henry Property Development. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-119-

Item G.2.i. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 

Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Henry Property Traffic Study 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number EN – 289 – 3167 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC (Consultant), of 8191 Birchwood Court, Johnston, IA dated 
July 16, 2018 for the peer review of the traffic study for the Henry Property Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to include Compensation for 
additional items required as a part of the Henry Property Traffic Study,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as 
follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. This task includes the completions of a second traffic impact study peer review for the proposed Henry 

Property Development.   The CONSULTANT reviewed the developer’s initial traffic study and provided a list 

of detailed comments that required further analysis and clarification.  The CONSULTANT will provide a 

second peer review of the revised traffic impact study and document review in a memo format.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a 
not to exceed fee of Three Thousand Four Hundred Sixty Dollars ($3,460) for the Scope of 
Service item 1. The compensation for this supplemental agreement is to be segregated from the 
original agreement.   
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated July 16, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

-121-

Item G.2.i. 



Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Study 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. EN – 289 – 3167 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:  Patrick P. Kueter, PE                
 
 

Title:  Title:      Project Manager                         
 
 

Date:  Date:      9/11/2018  

-122-

Item G.2.i. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Lake Street Trail 

 
 
The City’s CIP #48 identifies an asphalt trail along the south side of Lake Street in 
FY21.  The trail would span approximately 2/3 of a mile, from Central Avenue to Big 
Woods Lake Recreation Area.  The project still requires design, but is anticipated to be 
an asphalt overlay about 10’ wide over the gravel base currently present.  The design 
will need to consider and work to mitigate floodplain considerations, however we do 
have trails in other floodplain areas. 
 
Our CIP estimates the construction cost at $100,000.  Staff believes this project is a 
good candidate for Federal Recreational Trails Program funds.  This year, there is an 
extra $2 million set aside this year for maintenance.  This can include paving a granular 
trail.  If funded, up to 80% of the project could be covered by the grant, reducing the 
City’s expense for the project.  Projects that are funded would need to be let by October 
30, 2019.  Therefore, the City would need to move up the timing of this project for 
design in FY19 and construction in FY20.  To accomplish that, the City will need design 
support, which the grant supports.  Staff estimates $35,000 in surveying and design 
services.  The grants are typically awarded in January. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve: 1) the attached Memorandum of 
Understanding to prepare a Federal Recreational Trails Program application for this 
project and 2) resolution of support for the project authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
grant application and indicating the City will maintain the trail for at least 20 years.   
 
If a grant is awarded, then the agreement calls for a payment of grant writing services to 
INRCOG equal to 1.5% of the award. 
 

-123-

Item G.2.j. 



 



-125-

Item G.2.j. 



-126-

Item G.2.j. 



-127-

Item G.2.j. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Service Agency Contracts (CDBG Funds) 
  
The City of Cedar Falls is committed to obtaining funds every year through federal 
programs like CDBG, HOME, and Section 8 to help serve the needs of low and 
moderate income families and individuals living in Cedar Falls. The City may use up to 
15% of our CDBG to fund local service agencies. This year, the City received requests 
for funding from the following agencies. City Staff has reviewed the proposals and is 
recommending the following funding awards: 
 

• Consumer Credit Counseling: $2,500 
• Family and Children’s Council: $6,700 
• Salvation Army: $8,500 
• NE IA Food Bank: $8,500 
• Visiting Nurses Association: $4,500 
• Pathways Behavioral Services: $6,500 

Total: $37,200 
 
It should be noted that with these awards, each agency will receive an increase in 
funding when compared to the prior year and the City will expend the maximum amount 
of funds for agency support as is allowed by CDBG program guidelines, which for FY18-
19 is $37,200.  
 
Before a service agency can be awarded funding, the City must enter into a contract 
with the agency, which ensures all the required federal eligibility requirements are met. 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving the FY18-19 Service Agency Contracts, as attached.   
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney  
 
 

-129-

Item G.2.l. 



 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
This Agreement, made this ______ day of _________________, 2018, by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Consumer Credit 

Counseling Service of Northeastern Iowa, hereinafter called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
 
 
  
 

-131-

Item G.2.l. 



3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low-and-moderate income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
Consumer Credit Counseling Service certified credit counselors will provide housing 
counseling services through our office and local organizations. Housing education 
programs will be set up at Cedar Falls financial institutions and agencies in 
conjunction with company personnel. Additionally, financial counseling/budget 
education sessions consisting of the counselor and consumer for the purpose of 
reviewing the financial situation will be held as needed. The counselor will assist the 
client family in developing a budget and an action plan to assist them in achieving 
their financial goals. CCCS will follow up with each consumer after the initial 
counseling session to assist with budget adjustments, questions and support. 

 
4. COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $2,500.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of resident participation, shall supply complete information 
regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, sex, household 
size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information will be made 
available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to provide the 

-132-

Item G.2.l. 



client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, an 
identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due on October 24, 2018; 
January 24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 

 
Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
 
 

-133-

Item G.2.l. 



11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 
        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 
 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
 
AGENCY:             CITY: 
 
CONSUMER CREDIT COUNSELING   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
SERVICE OF NORTHEASTERN IOWA 
     
 
BY: ____________________________       BY: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________             ATTEST: ___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 

-134-

Item G.2.l. 



 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-135-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-136-

Item G.2.l. 



9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 
 
 

-137-

Item G.2.l. 



 
 

E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
 
 

-138-

Item G.2.l. 



14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

-139-

Item G.2.l. 



15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 
planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

-140-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

-141-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-142-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-143-

Item G.2.l. 



-144-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-145-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
This Agreement, made this ________ day of _______________, 2018, by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Family and Children’s 

Council, hereinafter called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
  
 

-147-

Item G.2.l. 



3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low- and moderate-income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
Family and Children’s Council will provide staff time and mileage for case 
management and home visits of eligible Cedar Falls residents.  Staff time will be 
reimbursed at the current hourly rate times 2 hours week per family for delivery of 
services in the home.  Staff mileage will also be reimbursed.   

  
4. COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $6,700.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of residential participation, shall supply complete 
information regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, 
sex, household size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information 
will be made available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to 
provide the client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, 
an identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

-148-

Item G.2.l. 



B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due October 24, 2018; January 
24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 

 
Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
 
 
 

-149-

Item G.2.l. 



11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 
        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 
 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
 
AGENCY:            CITY: 
 
FAMILY AND CHILDREN’S COUNCIL  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
     
 
BY: ____________________________       BY: ______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________             ATTEST: ___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

-150-

Item G.2.l. 



     

 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 

-151-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-152-

Item G.2.l. 



9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
gender identity, sex, sexual orientation, religion, color, disability or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 
 
 

-153-

Item G.2.l. 



 
 

E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
 
 

-154-

Item G.2.l. 



14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

-155-

Item G.2.l. 



15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 
planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

-156-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

-157-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-158-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-159-

Item G.2.l. 



-160-

Item G.2.l. 



-161-

Item G.2.l. 



-162-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-163-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
This Agreement, made this _________ day of ____________________, 2018, by and 

between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Northeast Iowa 

Food Bank, hereinafter called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
  
 

-165-

Item G.2.l. 



3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low- and moderate-income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
Northeast Iowa Food Bank will provide staff time to conduct intake assessments and 
gather food products for eligible Cedar Falls residents.  Such staff time will be 
reimbursed at the current rate per hour, with an average visit time per resident of one 
quarter of one hour.   

 
4. COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $8,500.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of resident participation, shall supply complete information 
regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, sex, household 
size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information will be made 
available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to provide the 
client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, an 
identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

-166-

Item G.2.l. 



B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due on October 24, 2018; 
January 24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 

 
Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 

-167-

Item G.2.l. 



        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 
 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
 
AGENCY:            CITY: 
 
NORTHEAST IOWA FOOD BANK  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
     
 
BY:____________________________       BY:______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:_______________________             ATTEST:___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
     

-168-

Item G.2.l. 



 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-169-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-170-

Item G.2.l. 



9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, disability, color, or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 
 
 

-171-

Item G.2.l. 



 
 

E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
 
 

-172-

Item G.2.l. 



14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

-173-

Item G.2.l. 



15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 
planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

-174-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

-175-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-176-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-177-

Item G.2.l. 



-178-

Item G.2.l. 



-179-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-180-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
This Agreement, made this ______ day of _________________, 2018, by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Pathways Behavioral 

Services, hereinafter called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
 
 
  
 

-181-

Item G.2.l. 



3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low- and moderate-income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
Pathways Behavioral Services will provide residential treatment and shelter for eligible 
Cedar Falls residents requiring substance abuse treatment. Allowable costs include 
prorated staff time and operation of the residential treatment center to reflect the 
portion of clients that are Cedar Falls residents. 

 
4. COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $6,500.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of resident participation, shall supply complete information 
regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, sex, household 
size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information will be made 
available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to provide the 
client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, an 
identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due on October 24, 2018; 

-182-

Item G.2.l. 



January 24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 
 

Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
 
11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 
        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 

-183-

Item G.2.l. 



 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
AGENCY:             CITY: 
 
PATHWAYS BEHAVIORAL SERVICES  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
     
 
BY:____________________________       BY:______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:_______________________             ATTEST:___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
     

-184-

Item G.2.l. 



 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-185-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-186-

Item G.2.l. 



9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, religion, disability, or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 
 
 

-187-

Item G.2.l. 



 
 

E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
 
 

-188-

Item G.2.l. 



14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

-189-

Item G.2.l. 



15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 
planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

-190-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

-191-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-192-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-193-

Item G.2.l. 



-194-

Item G.2.l. 



-195-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-196-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
T This Agreement, made this ______ day of _________________, 2018, by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Salvation Army, hereinafter 
called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
 
 

-197-

Item G.2.l. 



 3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 

CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low- and moderate-income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
The Salvation Army Women’s and Children’s Shelter provides a safe, supportive 
place for abused women and children when they have nowhere else to go. The 
emergency shelter staff provides supportive services to shelter residents working 
toward permanent stable housing and employment, as necessary. The expenses 
funded with CDBG dollars will cover operating costs, shelter rehabilitation and repairs, 
and/or water bills and staff salaries.  

 
 COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $8,500.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of resident participation, shall supply complete information 
regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, sex, household 
size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information will be made 
available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to provide the 
client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, an 

-198-

Item G.2.l. 



identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due on October 24, 2018; 
January 24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 

 
Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
 

-199-

Item G.2.l. 



11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 
        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 
 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
 
AGENCY:               CITY: 
 
SALVATION ARMY      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
     
 
BY:____________________________       BY:______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:_______________________             ATTEST:___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

-200-

Item G.2.l. 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-201-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

-202-

Item G.2.l. 



 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 

-203-

Item G.2.l. 



E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 

AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

-204-

Item G.2.l. 



program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 
15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 

-205-

Item G.2.l. 



planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

-206-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

 
 

 

-207-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-208-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-209-

Item G.2.l. 



-210-

Item G.2.l. 



-211-

Item G.2.l. 



-212-

Item G.2.l. 



-213-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-214-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

PART I - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
This Agreement, made this ______ day of _________________, 2018, by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the CITY, and Visiting Nursing 

Association, hereinafter called the AGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar of Cedar Falls has received approval from the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of an application for funds under Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, and approval of 
implementation of activities. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has allocated funds as part of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program, for the purpose of aiding homebound, elderly, 
disabled, and/or low- and moderate-income citizens, as defined by HUD's Section 8 
Income Limits, and handicapped residents. 
 
WHEREAS, a Statement of Work for FY18-19 has been prepared by the AGENCY and 
has been incorporated into this Agreement as Section 3. 
 
WHEREAS, the AGENCY is comprised of professional staff and will carry out the 
Statement of Work by providing assistance to eligible Cedar Falls citizens, as defined by 
HUD's Section 8 Income Limits, herein attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The CITY shall compensate the AGENCY in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement. 
 
1. THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CITY 
 

The AGENCY shall work with and through the Department of Community 
Development of Cedar Falls, Iowa, for the purpose of performing the services as 
hereinafter defined. 

      
2.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 
 

A. The CITY shall furnish to the AGENCY at no cost, available general information 
and records which pertain to the project. 

 
B. The CITY shall be responsible for monitoring the AGENCY for HUD compliance 

and the keeping of the project Community Development Block Grant account. 
 
 
 
 

-215-

Item G.2.l. 



  
 
3. AGENCY STATEMENT OF WORK/SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 
CDBG funds provided through the City of Cedar Falls will be used exclusively to 
provide services to low- and moderate-income residents of Cedar Falls. The 
Statement of Work/Scope of Services of the AGENCY for FY18-19 are as follows: 

 
Visiting Nursing Association will provide physician ordered skilled nursing services to 
low/moderate income residents of Cedar Falls in their homes when such services are 
needed and other service payment resources are not available.  VNA will be 
reimbursed at the current rate per visit.     

 
4. COMPLETION DATE  
 

The aforementioned services shall be accomplished during the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.  This agreement will be valid upon execution 
by the CITY and AGENCY. 

 
5.  BUDGET 
 

The FY18-19 budget for the AGENCY is herein attached as Exhibit B. 
 
6. AGREEMENT SUM 
 

The AGENCY shall be compensated for the scope of its services under this contract 
according to the annual appropriation by the CITY not to exceed $4,500.00 of 
Community Development Block Grant funds.  

 
7. METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 

The method of payment shall be on a quarterly reimbursable basis.  Each quarterly 
request by the AGENCY for reimbursement shall be supported by a completed "Direct 
Benefit Activity" form herein attached as Exhibit C, bills, invoices, and/or other 
appropriate documentation.  The AGENCY shall submit requests for payment and 
maintain adequate source documentation in accordance with the applicable provisions 
as specified in this Agreement. 

 
8. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
A. The AGENCY will maintain a list of all citizens assisted with CDBG funds. Each 

agency, as a condition of resident participation, shall supply complete information 
regarding head of household's name, race, ethnicity, address, age, sex, household 
size, household income and date(s) of service.  This information will be made 
available to the CITY upon request.  If the AGENCY is unable to provide the 
client's name and address due to the confidential nature of the project, an 

-216-

Item G.2.l. 



identifying code number will be substituted for the name and address. 
 

B. The AGENCY will submit quarterly progress reports providing all information 
requested on Exhibit C.  Quarterly reports will be due on October 24, 2018; 
January 24, 2019; April 25, 2019; and July 25, 2019 and shall be submitted to: 

 
Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
C. The AGENCY will submit to the CITY the names and job descriptions for project 

managers that clearly set out responsibilities for control and compliance. 
 

D. The AGENCY will maintain all applicable project documentation for a period of 
three (3) years following completion of this project.  This documentation will 
include but not be limited to:  eligibility verification information, intake and 
application files, job site time sheets, schedules, and work performance logs. 

 
9. MONITORING PROCEDURES  
 

The Cedar Falls Department of Community Development will be responsible for  
the administration of this Agreement to ascertain whether the AGENCY is complying 

 substantially with the Community Development Block Grant Agreement, regulations 
 and provisions. 
 

A. On-site monitoring visits may be conducted by the City at City’s discretion to 
verify Agreement compliance. 

       
B. The CITY will review AGENCY files to determine if adequate information is being 

maintained to be in compliance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  The CITY will 
provide the AGENCY with a monitoring report outlining any deficiencies in record 
keeping procedures and any corrective action to be implemented after any on-
site monitoring visit. 

 
10. EXTENT OF STATEMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT, composed of Part I, Part II and Exhibits A, B, and C hereby 
incorporated by this reference, represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT 
between the CITY and the AGENCY and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both CITY and the AGENCY.  Said 

        amendments shall be executed following approval by City Council and the Agency's 
        governing board, and both CITY and AGENCY shall retain an original executed copy. 
 
 

-217-

Item G.2.l. 



11.   DISPOSITION 
 
        When original or replacement equipment acquired under a grant or subgrant is no 
        longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or  
         previously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment will be made 
        as follows: 
 
        A.  Items of equipment with a current per-unit market value of less than $500 may be 
              retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the awarding 
              party. 
 
       B.  Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value in excess of $500 may 
             be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount 
             calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the 
             awarding agency's share of the equipment. 
 
      C.   In cases where a grantee or subgrantee fails to take appropriate disposition  
             actions, the awarding agency may direct the grantee or subgrantee to take  
             disposition actions. 
 
12. APPLICABLE LAW 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa.  IN WITNESS 
WHEREOF they have executed this AGREEMENT, the day and year first above 
mentioned. 

 
 
 
AGENCY:             CITY: 
 
VISITING NURSING ASSOCIATION  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
     
 
BY:____________________________       BY:______________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:_______________________             ATTEST:___________________________ 
 
DATE:    _______________________            DATE:    ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
     

-218-

Item G.2.l. 



 AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

             PART II - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE 
 

If, through any cause, the AGENCY shall fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner their 
obligations under this contract, or if the AGENCY shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations of this contract, the CITY shall thereupon have the right to 
terminate this Contract by given written notice to the AGENCY of such termination 
and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective 
date of such termination.  In such event, all finished and unfinished documents, data, 
studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports prepared by the 
AGENCY under this Contract shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property and 
the AGENCY shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
work satisfactorily completed hereunder. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, the AGENCY shall not be relieved of liability to the CITY 
for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the 
AGENCY, and the CITY may withhold any payments to the AGENCY for the purpose 
of set-off until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from the 
AGENCY is determined. 

 
2. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CITY 
 

The CITY may terminate this Contract at any time by giving at least ten (10) days 
notice in writing to the AGENCY.  If the Contract is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, the AGENCY will be paid for the time provided and expenses 
incurred up to the termination date.  If this Contract is terminated due to the fault of 
the AGENCY, Paragraph 1 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 

 
3. CHANGES 
 

The CITY may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
AGENCY to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or 
decrease in the amount of the AGENCY'S compensation, which are mutually agreed 
upon by and between the CITY and the AGENCY, shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Contract. 

 
4. PERSONNEL 
 

A. The AGENCY represents that they have, or will hire at their own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the services under this Contract.  Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-219-

Item G.2.l. 



B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the AGENCY or 
under their supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully 
qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to 
perform such services. 

 
C. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted 

without the prior written approval of the CITY.  Any work or services subcon-
tracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall 
be subject to each provision of this Contract. 

 
5. ASSIGNABILITY 
 

The AGENCY shall not assign any interest on this Contract, and shall not transfer or 
assign any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CITY,  
provided, however, that claims for money by the AGENCY from the CITY under this 
Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company or other financial institution 
without such approval.  Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 
furnished to the CITY. 

 
6. REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
 

The AGENCY, at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish 
the CITY such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or services 
undertaken pursuant to this Contract, the costs and obligations incurred or to be 
incurred in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this contract. 

 
7. RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

The AGENCY shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property and 
financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Con-
tract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CITY to assure 
proper accounting for all project funds, both Federal and nonfederal shares.  These 
records will be made available for audit purposes to the CITY or any authorized 
representative and will be retained for three years after the expiration of this Contract 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CITY. 

 
8.   FINDINGS CONFIDENTIAL 
 

All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by the AGENCY 
under this Contract are confidential and the AGENCY agrees that they shall not by 
made available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of 
the CITY. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-220-

Item G.2.l. 



9. COPYRIGHT 
 

No report, maps or other documents produced in whole or in part under this Contract 
shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the AGENCY. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 

The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and codes of the 
State of Iowa and the City of Cedar Falls, and the AGENCY shall save the CITY 
harmless with respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of 
the work embraced by this Contract. 

 
11. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 
 

During the performance of this Contract, the AGENCY agrees as follows: 
 

A. The AGENCY will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin.  The AGENCY will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated equally during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The AGENCY agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of 
this non-discrimination clause. 

 
B. The AGENCY will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by 

or on behalf of the AGENCY, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, religion, color, disability, or national origin. 

 
C. The AGENCY will, cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all 

subcontracts for any work covered by this Contract so that such provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall 
not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

 
D. The AGENCY will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor. 

 
 
 
 

-221-

Item G.2.l. 



 
 

E. The AGENCY will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations and orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records and accounts by the CITY'S Department of Community Development 
and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance 
with such rules, regulations and orders. 

 
F. In the event of the AGENCY'S noncompliance with the noncompliance clauses 

of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations or orders, this 
Agreement may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and 
the AGENCY may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation 
or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 
G. The AGENCY will include the provisions of paragraphs 11(1) through 11(7) in 

every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor.  The AGENCY will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event the AGENCY 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the CITY'S Department of Community 
Development, the AGENCY may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
12. CIVIL RIGHTS ACTS OF 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 
13. SECTION 309 OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 

1974 
     

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 

 
 
 

-222-

Item G.2.l. 



14. "SECTION 3" COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES 
 
A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 

program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
1701u. Section 3 requires that to the  greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area 
and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business 
concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing 
in the area of the project. 

 
B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 

the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 135 and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior the execution of this contract.  The parties 
to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other 
disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 
C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 

with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or under-
standing, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 

connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or 
recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the 
subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations 
issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  
The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or 
knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 
CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements 
of these regulations. 

 
E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 

Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder 
prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of Federal financial 
assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such 
assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan 
agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such 
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 

 

-223-

Item G.2.l. 



15. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF A CITY 
 

No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, employee, or agent 
of the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the 
planning and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to 
assure compliance. 

 
16.  INTEREST OF OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
 

No member of the governing body of the locality and no other public official of such 
locality, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the planning 
and carrying out of the program, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or 
indirect, in this Contract; and the AGENCY shall take appropriate steps to assure 
compliance. 

 
17.  INTEREST OF AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES 
 

The AGENCY covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire 
interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels therein or any other interest 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of their services 
hereunder.  The AGENCY further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, 
no person having any such interest shall be employed.  
 
 

CONTRACTOR 

 

SECTION 3 PLAN FORMAT 
 

 
The AGENCY agrees to implement the following specific affirmative action steps directed 
at increasing the utilization of lower income residents and businesses within the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls SMA. 
 
1. To ascertain from the locality's CDBG program official the exact boundaries of the 

Section 3 covered project area and where advantageous, seek the assistance of local 
officials in preparing and implementing the affirmative action plan. 

 
2. To attempt to recruit from within the necessary number of lower income residents 

through:  Local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site for the project, 
and community organizations and public or private institutions operating within or 
serving the project area such as Service Employment and Redevelopment (SER), 
Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC), Urban League, Concentrated 
Employment Program, Hometown Plan, or U.S. Employment Service. 

 
3. To maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their 

own or on referral from any source, and to employ such persons, if otherwise eligible 
and if a vacancy exists. 

-224-

Item G.2.l. 



 
*4. To insert this Section 3 plan in all bid documents, and to require all bidders on 

subcontractors to submit a Section 3 affirmative action plan including utilization goals 
and the specific steps planned to accomplish these goals. 

 
*5. To insure that subcontractors which are typically let on a negotiated rather than a bid 

basis in areas other than Section 3 covered project areas, are also let on a negotiated 
basis, whenever feasible, when let in a Section 3 covered project area. 

 
6. To formally contact union, subcontractors and trade associations to secure their 

cooperation for this program. 
 
7. To insure that all appropriate project area business concerns are notified of pending 

subcontractual opportunities. 
 
8. To maintain records, including copies of correspondence, memoranda, etc., which 

document that all of the above affirmative action steps have been taken. 
 

*Loans, grants, contracts and subsidies for less than $10,000 will be exempt. 
 
9. To appoint or recruit an executive official of the company or agency as an Equal 

Opportunity Officer to coordinate the implementation of the Section 3 plan. 
 
10. To list all projected work force needs for all phases of this project by occupation, 

trade, skill level, and number of positions. 
 
As officers and representatives of the AGENCY we, the undersigned, have read and fully 
agree to this Affirmative Action Plan, and become a party to the full implementation of this 
program. 
 
__________________________________ 
Agency 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ ________________________________ 
Title        Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     
Signature            
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title        Date  
 

-225-

Item G.2.l. 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

    CERTIFICATION OF AGENCY REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 

OPPORTUNITY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
This certification is required pursuant of Executive Order 11246(30 F.R. 12319-25).  The 
implementing rules and regulations provide that any bidder or prospective contractor, or 
any of their proposed subcontractors, shall state as an initial part of the bid or negotiations 
of the contract whether it has participated in any previous contract or subcontract subject to 
the Equal Opportunity clause; and if so, whether it has filed all compliance reports due 
under applicable instructions. 
 
Where the certification indicates that the AGENCY has not filed a compliance report due 
under applicable instructions, such AGENCY shall be required to submit a compliance 
report within seven calendar days after bid opening.  No contract shall be awarded unless 
such report is submitted. 

 

CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENCY: _________________________________ 
 
       _________________________________ 
 
1. Agency has participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Equal 

Opportunity clause. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
2. Compliance reports were required to be filed in connection with such contract or 

subcontract. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
3. Agency has filed all compliance reports due under applicable instructions, including 

SF-100. 
  X   Yes              ___ No 

 
4. Have you ever been or are you being considered for sanction due to violation of 

Executive Order 11246, as amended? 
___ Yes                X   No 

 
PRINTED NAME:  _________________________________ 
 
                       
TITLE:  _________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 
 
 
DATE:   _________________________________ 

-226-

Item G.2.l. 



Exhibit A:

INCOME LIMITS
Effective 4-1-2018

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
30% 14,250 16,460 20,780 25,100 29,420 33,740 38,060 42,380
50% 23,750 27,150 30,550 33,900 36,650 39,350 42,050 44,750
80% 38,000 43,400 48,850 54,250 58,600 62,950 67,300 71,650

-227-

Item G.2.l. 



-228-

Item G.2.l. 



-229-

Item G.2.l. 



1/28/2014\\store6\users\MMValdivia\Direct Benefit CDBG Form.ALL

File No.  Note: Check one for the entire year of reporting. CDBG DIRECT BENEFIT ACTIVITY REPORT
Project:         Household (Each household is one unit) No less than 51% of clientele served MUST qualify at L/M income level
Sponsor:          Client (Each person is one unit) Report Complied by:  

             Phone No:  
 

FAX No.:
Record ONLY the UNDUPLICATED number served.

Categories IDIS Jul - ___ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan - ___ Feb Mar Apr May June Total
Grand 
Total

Income 
a)    # of Extremely Low      
b)    # of Very Low        
c)    # of Low 
d)    # of Non-Low / Moderate (above 80% area MHI)

Income
Single race category
e)    White 11  
f )    Black/African Amer. 12  
g)    Asian 13  
h)    Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native 14
i )    Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 15   
Multi-race category
j  )   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & White 16  
k )   Asian & White 17  
l  )   Black/African Amer. & White 18
m)   Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer. 19
n )   Hispanic/White     
o )   Hispanic/Black/African American  
p )   Hispanic/Asian  
q )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native  
r  )   Hispanic/Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 
s )   Hispanic/American Indian/Alaskan Native & White
t  )   Hispanic/Asian & White
u )   Hispanic/Black/African American & White
v )   Hispanic/Amer. Indian/Alaskan Native & Black/African Amer.  

w)   Other (multi-race only) 20       
Total Number Served 

Duplicate Units of Service per month

Instructions:  Gray areas for internal use only -- calculations will appear automatically.
    When choosing a category, choose ONLY one that best identifies a specific client/family being served.  

    Calculations: Totals in both categories (income/race) must equal.          CDBG: Private:
Quarterly reports are due at the end of  -- Sept., Dec., Mar., and June.       Federal (other): Fees:
     Attach a second sheet for quarterly activity reports.       State: Other:
    Reports are to include 3-months of program accomplishments and/or a brief explanation       Local:
    of why goals were not met, and an over-all projection for the next 3-months. TOTAL:

EXPENDITURES -- Total spent YTD from ALL funding sources:

GRANT ALLOCATION

-230-

Item
 G

.2.l. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 815 Olive Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Madeleine Seymour is in the process of purchasing 815 Olive Street. The pending owner has 
submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program. The property meets the requirements for the program: has 
been a rental for at least the past three years (since early 2001), is located in the R-2 zoning 
district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a block with less than 
75% rentals.  
 
Madeleine Seymour is proposing to repair the property’s chimney, replace the existing 
driveway/patio/stoop, and update the drainage around the house. Based on the submitted bids 
by Owens Property Service (chimney) and Cedar Valley Lawn Care (driveway/patio/stoop and 
drainage) the actual cost of the improvements listed is $14,913.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection) and closing 
documents being provided to staff. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-231-

Item G.2.m. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 
 
Date:    
 
RE: Property located at: 815 Olive Street  
and legally described as PACIFIC ADDITION ALL LOT 91 EXC S 6 FT 
 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners:  Madeleine Seymour (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

-232-

Item G.2.m. 



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   
   
Madeleine Seymour   
OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2018, by Madeleine 
Seymour. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

-233-

Item G.2.m. 



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � �

 ! " # $ ! % & ' ( ) * * ! $ ( ( +, 	 � � � 	 � � - � � � � �  � � 	 � � � � � � � � . � / . � / 0 � 1 � 	2 � � � � � 3 � � � � � � � � �) # # 4 5 6 7 8 % ' ( 9 � � � � � : � � � � � � , 1 � � � ; �� < 	 	 � � � : � � � = � � � � 	 � 	 � � � � 	 � � � > < � � 	 �? � � � � � � 3 � � 	 � � � � � 0 @ � � 	  � � � � � � � 	 � � � � 1 � � � A � B � � �C D 8 $ ! ' ( 9 � � � � � : � � � � � � , 1 � � � ; �2 � � < 	 � � � � � � 	 � B � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �9 � � � � � � � � � 	 3 � � < � � � � � � � � E � � 	 � B � � � � � � �, 	 � � � � � � F � � 	 � : � � � � 9 � � � � � � � � � 	 3 � � < � � : � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �G � � � � 	 � : � � � � � � , 1 � � � ; �G � � � � 	 3 � � 	 � � � �3 � � � � � � � � � F � � � � � < 	 � � : � � � �2 � � �  , 	 � � � � � � �H I J K L M N O P Q I R S NT U V W T X Y Z T U [ \ ] ] ^ _ ` a b _ c d \ ] ] e c f g h i j _ k a ] ] e c f g hl g a k c d m _ n h _ k a ] ] e c f g h o pj a b g p l g k c ^ q b _ c d Z c r\ b b g k b g h s t b u g T _ b t T ^ g e v\ w w x w w X l y e g k g d b \ k k g k k g h z a ^ q g c n w b e q ` b q e g\ k k g k k g h z a ^ q g { _ b u U | ] e c f g | g d b kx ^ _ } _ s ^ g c e Z c d ~ g ^ _ } _ s ^ g n c e V a � \ s a b g | g d b\ k k g k k c e j a b g

� � � 0 � � B � F � 	 � � � / � � � � 	 
 � � � � / E 3 � � � � �. �? � � � � � � � � F � � � � < 	� � � � � � < 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �: � � � � � � � � � < � / . � � � � � � � < �� � � � 2 � 2 E 0 2 . : � � � � � � � � � � � �� 1 � � � � � � � � � � � / 
 � � > 	 � � � / > � 	 � � � � / < � � � � � � � � � � 	: 	 � B � @ � � � G � @ � � . � � � < 	 � 	 � B � @ � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � 	 � � 	 � � � � � @ � � � � 	 � � � � @ � � � 	 � � � � < � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   � � � � �   � � � � �  � � � � � � ¡ � � � � � � � � ¢ � � � £ � � ¤ � ¥ ¥ � � ¦ � � � � � � � � � § § � § ¨ � © � �§ �   § ª   § « § §   � ª   § «� � � � ¬ � � � �  � � ® � � £ ¯ � ¬ � � ° ¯ � � � ± ¬ � � � ¥ � § ¨ © ª � � © ª ¨ ¨ §ª � � � � � � � � � � � ¥ � � � � � � � ² � � � � ¥ � � � ³ ´ µ � � � §
           Madeleine Seymour «   � �   § «¶ � £ � ¥ � � � � � � � � � ¬ �

-234-

Item G.2.m. 



-235-

Item G.2.m. 



-236-

Item G.2.m. 



-237-

Item G.2.m. 



-238-

Item G.2.m. 



-239-

Item G.2.m. 



-240-

Item G.2.m. 



-241-

Item G.2.m. 



RENTAL T- SINGLE
F A M I L Y  O W N E R
CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM

MAKING A POSITIVE 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT

220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph: (319) 273-8600 
Fax: (319) 268-5126

www.cedarfalls.com

For more information or to obtain an application,  
please contact the Cedar Falls Community  

Development Department.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS

	R1 and R2 zoned properties within the 
designated area on the boundary map that 
have been rentals for at least three years. 
Major household systems must be in good  
working order. City inspection required.

	Major household systems include electrical, 
plumbing, HVAC, and general overall 
property and structure condition. City  
will not provide funding if there are health  
or safety concerns with the major systems.  
(If major systems repairs are included as  
part of the project and will be financed by 
the homeowner, the project could be eligible 
for this program.)

	Date of application will be used to prioritize 
projects unless there are less applications 
than available funding.  The following 
preferences of project funding will be 
evaluated for use:

 A.  Structures built prior to 1980

 B.  Projects with two or more  
improvements that provide a  
larger neighborhood impact

 C.  Projects in blocks with less than  
50% rentals

	Improvements must be made on private 
property and completed within six months  
of closing. Repayment may be required if 
improvements have not been completed, 
have not started, or no significant progress 
has been made. 

-242-

Item
 G

.2.m
. 



DETAILED PROGRAM 
COMPONENTS 

	Forgivable Loan Program with 20% forgiven 
each year with prorated payback if sold within 
five years

	A lien will be placed on the property

	No current income limits or matching  
fund requirements

	City funds to be used only for exterior 
improvements that create positive visual  
neighborhood impacts

	Maximum City funding of $10,000  
per project

	50% of City funding provided after closing, 
with approved application and cost estimate  
for improvements

	Balance paid after project completion, with  
all project receipts and City inspection

Dotted outline shows 
the initial project area

PROGRAM PROCESS

Submit application

Staff review (including interior  
and exterior site inspection)

Council review and approval

Owner closing on rental purchase

50% payment made  
based on cost estimate

Complete approved improvement project 
(balance of payment due)

GENERAL PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES

	Available to R1 and R2 zoned rental 
properties within the project area (see map)

	City staff will be involved prior to closing 
and can provide an indication of eligibility

	Post-Closing Program to ensure conversion 
of property to single-family ownership

	Discretionary program: City has no 
obligation to fund a request

The City of Cedar Falls has established 
a new Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program with a  

goal of promoting balance within  
certain neighborhoods.

SAMPLE EXTERIOR 
IMPROVEMENTS

	Siding, paint, roof, windows,  
and gutters

	Landscaping, clearing, cleanup  
(as part of other improvements)

	Removing areas of broken paving/gravel  
and replacing with hard surface

	Removal of deteriorated stoops/porches

	Other exterior improvements adding to the 
overall home and neighborhood character

-243-

Item
 G

.2.m
. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Design review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 
 

REQUEST: 
 
Design Review in the Central Business District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 
Jeffery and Jessica Marsh, property owners 

LOCATION: 
 
408-412 Main Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The owners of 408-412 Main Street are proposing to paint a mural over the entire south side of 
the building. The proposed mural was designed by Jenny Boevers. If approved the mural will be 
painted by attendees of an artistic weekend retreat and later completed by downtown 
stakeholders. More information about the proposed event and the painting process are outlined 
in the letter of intent. See image of the existing wall and the proposed mural to be painted over it 
below. 

 
Existing wall     Proposed Mural 
 
BACKGROUND 
All substantial improvements in the Central Business District, as defined in Section 29-168 - 
CBD, Central business district overlay, must be reviewed and approved by the Planning & 

-245-

Item G.2.n. 



Zoning Commission as well as City Council. The proposed mural on 408-412 Main Street 
qualifies as substantial improvement. For reviewing murals the following code is applicable: 
 

“Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: These elements shall be 
reviewed to consider the scale, context, coloration and appropriateness of the proposal in 
relation to nearby facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the downtown 
area.” (Sec. 29-168, h, 7) 

                                         
ANALYSIS 
The proposed location of the mural is on the buildings 
secondary façade and is adjacent to a parking lot. See 
map to the right, the yellow star indicating the wall that 
the proposed mural will be on. Although the proposal will 
not affect the primary façade of the building along Main 
Street, it will be highly visible to those entering the 
downtown coming from the south. Having a mural at this 
location will provide visual interest and vibrancy to what is 
currently a blank wall. 
 
The proposed mural will cover the entire south-facing 
cinderblock painted wall, encompassing 840 square feet 
(40 feet by 21 feet). The mural will not cover any 
architecturally significant brickwork. The paint that the applicant is proposing to use is Chalk 
Paint that is weather resistant. The applicants have agreed to take responsibility of maintaining 
the mural and will address deterioration or any vandalism.  
 
The mural, designed by Jenny Boevers, is her abstract representation of Cedar Falls. Numerous 
local landmarks and symbols have been incorporated into the design. It does not advertise a 
business, use, or merchandise so it does not trigger signage requirements.  There are 
numerous colors proposed in the mural that provide contrast and vibrancy. Although some of 
the colors proposed are very bright there are enough neutral colors in the design to stabilize the 
piece.   
 
Overall, the proposed mural is a statement piece that is the artist’s attempt to capture the spirit 
of Cedar Falls. The proposed location of the mural, on a secondary façade, along with the mural 
details is consistent with the character of the downtown.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No Technical Comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/12/2018 

Planner Lehmann presented the proposed mural to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. There was some discussion on the city’s review process for 
murals and the role of the Public Art Committee. Planner Lehmann and Carol 
Lilly, Community Main Street, explained that as the piece was on private 
property and no public funds were being requested a review by the Public Art 
Committee was not triggered. The Public Art Committee has not reviewed 
the piece. Brad Leeper and Dave Hartley noted that they did not feel 
comfortable reviewing art and requested that the Public Art Committee 
review the piece before moving the request forward to Council. The Planning 

-246-

Item G.2.n. 



and Zoning Commission voted on a 5-2 vote to recommend approval of the 
mural to Council (Leeper and Hartley voting no). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission and the Community Development Department 
recommend approving the submitted mural to 408-412 Main Street, subject to the following 
stipulations: 

• Jeffery and Jessica Marsh will take responsibility for maintaining the mural. 
 

Attachments:   Project Summary, Letter of Intent, Image of existing wall, Image of proposed mural 

-247-

Item G.2.n. 



 



-249-

Item G.2.n. 



-250-

Item G.2.n. 



-251-

Item G.2.n. 



 



-253-

Item
 G

.2.n. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Site Plan review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 
 

REQUEST: 
 

Site Plan Review in the Central Business District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls on Behalf of the Property Owner 

LOCATION: 
 

308 Franklin Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The owner of 308 Franklin Street is converting 
the existing structure into a commercial office 
space. It is proposed to construct an 11’-10” x 
28’ addition and deck off the back of the 
existing structure. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The property owner is working with the City of 
Cedar Falls to relocate their business from 
704 W. 1st Street to 308 Franklin Street. This 
business relocation is part of the W. 1st Street 
reconstruction project that requires a total 
acquisition of the property at 704 W. 1st Street. 
 

All substantial improvements in the Central 
Business District, as defined in Section 29-
168 - CBD, Central business district overlay zoning district, must be reviewed and approved by 
the Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council. The proposed changes to 308 Franklin 
Street qualify as a substantial improvement as it will modify the exterior appearance of the 
structure. Typically, a single family dwelling is exempt from the overlay review process. 
However, since the property is being converted from a single family dwelling to an office space, 
all commercial changes to the facade or additions need approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council.  

-255-

Item G.2.o. 



The Central Business District design review is in place to ensure that proposed improvements or 
development will complement existing nearby uses and building designs. The property in 
question is located at the edge of the CBD in a C-1 commercial zoning district. The property is 
surrounded by existing commercial office use, parking lots, the Historical Society and Museum 
and residential dwellings along W. 4th Street.   
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is located in the C-1, 
commercial district. The proposed use as 
an office space conforms to the permitted 
uses within said commercial district. The 
current parking standards are provided 
on site and in the adjacent parking lot. 
The only proposed change will be to 
remove a small entry off the back of the 
building and replace it with a larger entry 
and deck to accommodate ADA 
accessibility requirements for the new 
office. The proposed addition will be 
approximately 8 feet from the north 
side lot line and 37 feet from the back 
lot line. The proposed addition will not 
extend beyond the front or south side 
of the house. All building setbacks 
satisfy the C-1 district standards. An 
ADA chair lift will be installed off the 
south side of the deck. There will be a 
sidewalk from the deck to the garage. 
 
The proposed addition is a single story 
structure topped with a hip roof 
structure. Included in the design are 
windows on the north and east side 
along with a rear entry door onto the 
deck. The materials and color of the 
proposed addition will match the 
existing structure with a 4” lap board 
siding material. The addition will be 
constructed off the back of the house. 
 
The following is an evaluation of the 
overlay district’s design review 
requirements: 
 
1. Proportion: The project will extend approximately 6 feet beyond the north side of the house. 

This off-set is due to the location of the basement stairway that will be installed 
around the ADA bathroom in the south half of the addition. The bottom of the 
stairway ties into an old exterior cellar door. Since this is a detached single unit 
structure, the proposed addition is complementary with the existing and 
surrounding structures. This criterion is met.  

 

 

 

-256-

Item G.2.o. 



 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The 

proposed addition is topped 
with a gable end roof that is 
tied into a hip roof. This design 
is similar in pitch, shape and 
direction as the existing and 
surrounding structures. This 
criterion is met. 

 
3. Pattern:  The plan will not add or 

remove any openings to the 
existing building. There will be new 
windows installed on the north and east 
side of the addition and a door off the east 
side to access the structure from the deck. 
This criterion is met. 

 
4. Materials and texture: The exterior materials for this 

new addition will match the 4” lap board 
siding on the existing structure. The deck 
will be constructed with a treated wood 
frame and composite deck boards and 
railing. This criterion is met. 

 
5. Color:     The color of the proposed addition will 

match the color on the existing structure. This criterion is met.  
 
6. Architectural features: The proposed addition is standard construction with a similar 

overhang. There are no special architectural features on the addition that will 
interfere with the design of the existing or surrounding structures. This criterion is 
met. 

 
 7. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: not applicable. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
9/12/2018 

Vice Chair Holst introduced this site plan and Mr. Sturch provided some 
background information. The City is working with the property owner to 
relocate their business as part of the W. 1st Street reconstruction project. The 
proposal is to construct a new addition off the back of the house in order to 
meet the ADA accessibility requirements for the new commercial office.  

The recommended a steeper roof pitch on the new addition. City staff will 
work with the contractor to adjust the roof line. There were no comments by 
the Commission. The Commission recommended approval of the site plan at 
308 Franklin Street. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the site plan at 308 Franklin 
Street. 

 

 

-257-

Item G.2.o. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division wwww Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division wwww Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 
  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 
project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

2 Michael and Hope Timmerman 1621 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 

11 Jerry Hummel 1203 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Permanent and 
Temporary Easement 
Tenant Agreement 

29 D. Keith Jones 715 W. 1st Street Temporary Easement 
Tenant Agreement 

57 Jennifer Bailey 916 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 

-259-

Item G.2.p. 



includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1st Street 
reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 Terra Ray, Engineering Technician II 
  

-260-

Item G.2.p. 



76
75

74 6973 6772
66

65
71 70 63 62

61

59 58
55 54

53
52

51 48 47
45 4478

798081
82 253 4 5 5 6 7 388 26

40

399 31 32
33

34 3735 36
10 12 14

16
17 19

20
21

22
24

1

77

27
28

64 57

2 29
11

68 60
56 49 4143

3023

42

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

Crescent Dr

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rv

Elm St

W Park Dr

W 3rd St

W 2nd St

Pa
rk

Dr

W 1st St

Edgewood St

Linda Dr

Theimer St

S Forest Rd

Pine St

Hu
ds

o n
R d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Me
mo

ria
l A

ve

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

W 3rd St
Pe

ar
l S

t

Ida St

Ol
ive

 St

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Iow
a S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

Cl
ay

 St

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEllen St

S Park Rd

Linden St

Edgewood St

Maple St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Forres tR d

Hi
gh

lan
d D

r

Willow Bend Rd

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Ba
ke

r D
r

N
H ighlandDr

Center St

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Not Signed

-261-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



 



-263-

Item G.2.p. 



-264-

Item G.2.p. 



-265-

Item G.2.p. 



-266-

Item G.2.p. 



-267-

Item G.2.p. 



-268-

Item G.2.p. 



-269-

Item G.2.p. 



-270-

Item G.2.p. 



-271-

Item G.2.p. 



-272-

Item G.2.p. 



-273-

Item G.2.p. 



-274-

Item G.2.p. 



-275-

Item G.2.p. 



-276-

Item G.2.p. 



-277-

Item G.2.p. 



-278-

Item G.2.p. 



-279-

Item G.2.p. 



-280-

Item G.2.p. 



-281-

Item G.2.p. 



-282-

Item G.2.p. 



-283-

Item G.2.p. 



-284-

Item G.2.p. 



-285-

Item G.2.p. 



-286-

Item G.2.p. 



-287-

Item G.2.p. 



-288-

Item G.2.p. 



-289-

Item G.2.p. 



-290-

Item G.2.p. 



-291-

Item G.2.p. 



-292-

Item G.2.p. 



-293-

Item G.2.p. 



-294-

Item G.2.p. 



-295-

Item G.2.p. 



-296-

Item G.2.p. 



-297-

Item G.2.p. 



-298-

Item G.2.p. 



-299-

Item G.2.p. 



-300-

Item G.2.p. 



-301-

Item G.2.p. 



-302-

Item G.2.p. 



-303-

Item G.2.p. 



-304-

Item G.2.p. 



-305-

Item G.2.p. 



-306-

Item G.2.p. 



-307-

Item G.2.p. 



-308-

Item G.2.p. 



-309-

Item G.2.p. 



-310-

Item G.2.p. 



-311-

Item G.2.p. 



-312-

Item G.2.p. 



-313-

Item G.2.p. 



-314-

Item G.2.p. 



-315-

Item G.2.p. 



-316-

Item G.2.p. 



-317-

Item G.2.p. 



-318-

Item G.2.p. 



-319-

Item G.2.p. 



-320-

Item G.2.p. 



-321-

Item G.2.p. 



-322-

Item G.2.p. 



-323-

Item G.2.p. 



-324-

Item G.2.p. 



-325-

Item G.2.p. 



-326-

Item G.2.p. 



-327-

Item G.2.p. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 TO: Mayor and City Council 
 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: September 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request – Park Ridge Estates 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residence 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Larry Hill, Owner; Wingert Development, CGA, Inc., Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

20.8 acre parcel at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 
 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicants have submitted a request to 
rezone 20.8 acres of land off the north end of 
Lakeshore Drive from A-1, Agricultural to 
R-1, Residence as shown on the location map. 
The rezoning will allow development of single 
family homes similar to the adjacent subdivisions 
of the Lakewood Estates, Lakewood Hills and 
the Ridges 7th developments.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural 
since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
The land is surrounded by R-1, Single Unit 
Residential zoning on the south and east sides. 
The current owner is interested in selling this land for future development. There is a current 
buyer with an offer to purchase the land with the condition to rezone the land for future 
residential development. The rezoning of this property must be carefully considered by 
evaluating the characteristics of the land and surrounding properties. This staff report will outline 
a number of these elements in order to have a firm understanding of the future use of this 
property. 
 
 

 

-329-

Item G.2.q. 



ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the A-1, agricultural zoning district is to act as a “holding zone” for future 
development when municipal services (sanitary sewer, water, roads) are accessible to the site.  
When these services are available, the development of the land is threefold, beginning with the 
rezoning of the land, platting and construction. 
 
As previously mentioned, this 20-acre property is surrounded by residential development on the 
west, south and east. The west side includes A-1, agricultural large lot residential homes with 
access onto Skyview Drive and Union Road. The south and east are residential subdivisions in 
the R-1, Residence Zoning District. The north side of the property is city owned Ulrich Park. 
Additional features of the property include steep slopes on the east and north which is part of 
the floodplain district. There are approximately 9 acres of land located in the aforementioned 
floodplain district. This leaves approximately 12 acres for development that is out of the 
floodplain and steep slopes area. The zoning ordinance allows the platting of land in the 
floodplain as long as the building area and no more than 25% of the lot area is in the floodplain. 
This basically allows the back yard area to be situated in the floodplain and in this case the 
ravine along the east and north side of the property. 
 
Zoning considerations normally involve evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this and the surrounding properties as Low Density 
Residential and Greenways/Floodplain. Low density residential emphasizes single family 
detached development. Typical densities range from 1 to 4 units per acre. These 
developments, as well as any development in the city will be provided with full municipal 
services. Residential growth centers are identified along W. 1st Street and Union Road. In 
order to develop the land to the west of this proposed site, the necessary infrastructure (i.e. 
sanitary sewer) will need to be extended through the north end of this site from the east 
end of Skyview Drive. From this point, the sanitary sewer will follow the ravine along the 
south side of Skyview Drive to service the area along Union Road. The intended use of the 
developable area of the property is less than 1 unit per acre. 

 

 

Future Land Use Map with Categories 

-330-

Item G.2.q. 



The next land use category is floodplain. 
This property includes steep slopes, 
drainage ways and wooded areas on the 
east and north edge of the property which 
is part of the floodplain district. There are 
approximately 9 acres of land located in the 
aforementioned floodplain district. This 
leaves approximately 12 acres for 
development that is out of the floodplain 
and steep slopes area. These 
environmentally sensitive areas must be 
maintained to avoid flooding, erosion and 
other adverse impacts to this and the 
surrounding properties, which is a principle 
goal of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
These environmentally sensitive areas will be reviewed as part of the platting process. The 
developer submitted an environmental report and grading plan for stormwater control with 
the preliminary plat. As the plats are developed and the lots are identified, the floodplain 
area along the north and east edge of the property must be preserved in open space. The 
zoning ordinance allows the platting of land in the floodplain as long as the building area 
and no more than 25% of the lot area is in the floodplain. This basically allows the back 
yard area to be situated in the floodplain and in this case the ravine along the east and 
north side of the property. The intent in this case is to create “outlots” in the floodplain to be 
sold to the owner of the adjoining lot. The developer’s plan is to leave this sensitive area in 
its current natural state and avoid the existing wooded areas next to the slope and in the 
ravine. 

 
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, sanitary sewer is readily available to the site. This sewer is located off the north end 
of Lakeshore Drive approximately 200 feet into the petitioner’s property. This sewer line is 
located in the Lakeshore Drive right of way. At this point, a sewer manhole changes the 
route of the sewer line by heading east to the lift station near the southeast corner of the 
property. Sanitary sewer will extend from the aforementioned manhole in the Lakeshore 
Drive right of way to the end of the street to service the proposed lots in the subdivision. 
Typically, the sanitary sewer must be extended to the limits of the plat, per City’s 
subdivision ordinance in order to accommodate the future growth in the northwest portion 
of Cedar Falls. The petitioner’s engineer provided a preliminary sanitary sewer study to 
identify a future location of the sewer extension to the limits of the property (plat). It was 
determined that due to the steep slopes, floodplain and soil conditions, a sanitary sewer is 
not feasible through the north end of the Lakeshore Drive extension or along the easterly 
property line. The proposed development of this property will utilize the existing lift station 
at the southeast corner of the property. 

 
The intent for future sanitary sewer is to extend the existing sewer line along the Cedar 
River to a new lift station in Ulrich Park, which is located adjacent to the north side of the 
property. A future sewer line will extend through the north edge of the petitioner’s property 
for sewer service to the northwest portion of Cedar Falls. 

 
 

 

-331-

Item G.2.q. 



3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property currently has access off the north end of Lakeshore Drive. The International 
Fire Code allows up to 30 dwelling units in a residential development on a single access 
road or public street. Since the west half of Lakewood Hills and the Lakewood Estates 
subdivision includes 30 residential dwellings, a secondary access to this site is needed. 
Multiple access roads are needed to ensure that if one road is blocked, the other road will 
provide access to the site. This secondary access could be provided with a street that 
continues through this property and connecting into the east end of Skyview Drive. This 
would require a structure or bridge to cross the floodplain and ravine along the north end of 
the property. An exception to this rule is that the single access road may be provided for 
more than 30 residential dwellings, these dwellings must be equipped with an approved 
automatic sprinkler system in accordance with the International Fire Code. 

 
Lastly, there is an earthen dam located adjacent to the southeast corner of the property for the 
Lakewood Hill pond. Future development near this dam must be restricted in order to maintain 
access and the integrity of the structure.   
     
As part of the technical review of this proposal, Cedar Falls Utilities personnel have no concerns 
with the proposed rezoning request. All utility services are located in the adjacent residential 
subdivisions and will be extended into this property as part of the platting process. 
 
The rezoning of this property would allow for the continued development of residential lots. A 
notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on September 6, 2018 regarding this 
rezoning request.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction and 
Public Hearing 
8/22/2018 

Mrs. Oberle introduced this item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that the item is an introduction to a rezoning request for a 20 acre parcel at the 
north end of Lakeshore Drive from A-1, Agricultural to R-1, Residential. He discussed the 
elements that are considered for this kind of request including future land use, public 
utilities, street access and existing environmental features including floodplain, tree stands, 
tree slopes, wetlands and drainage. 
 
There were several nearby residents in the audience concerned about stormwater issues, 
flooding, erosion and the siltation of the existing lake. The Commission had questions 
regarding the sanitary and storm sewer. The project engineer from Clapsaddle Garber 
summarized the stormwater management.  
 
Chair Oberle reiterated that the issue at hand is the rezoning portion of the project. There 
were no other comments and the public hearing and discussion will continue at the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on September 12, 2018. 
 

Public Hearing 
9/12/18 

Vice Chair Holst introduced this site plan and Mr. Sturch provided some background 
information. He summarized the rezoning request, future land use and public infrastructure 
to the property. 
  
The Commission commented on the proposed rezoning and agrees that the request follows 
the future land use map. There were no comments and the Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning request from A-1 to R-1. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council set a date for 
public hearing on October 1, 2018 for this rezoning request. 

-332-

Item G.2.q. 



-333-

Item G.2.q. 



-334-

Item
 G

.2.q. 



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 29, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  
PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission to change the zoning from A-1 Agricultural to R-1, Residence as described below, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in zoning, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 
a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to amend Section  
29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III Districts and District 
Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, by removing and changing from the  A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and 
placed in the R-1 Residence Zoning District the following described real estate: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), 
RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD 
HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH 
(T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF 
LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-
EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
And that said public hearing shall be held on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 
in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of September, 2018. 
 
 

-335-

Item G.2.q. 



  _________________________ 
                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-336-

Item G.2.q. 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED CHANGES IN  
SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND  
DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29), ZONING, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA BY REMOVING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE 

FROM THE A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND PLACING SAID 
REAL ESTATE IN THE R-1 RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an amendment to Section 29-107, 
District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of 
Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and known as the Zoning Ordinance and that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
proposes to amend said Ordinance by removing the following described real estate from the A-1 
Agricultural Zoning District, and placing the same in the R-1 Residence Zoning District, as 
follows: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), 
RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD 
HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH 
(T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF 
LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-
EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
There will be a public hearing on said proposed change on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 
o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers amending said Section is now on file in the office of the 
City Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is available for reference and 
inspection by the public.  Objections to said proposed change in said Ordinance may be made in 
writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and oral objections will be heard 
at said hearing. 
 

_________________________________ 
                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-337-

Item G.2.q. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  
OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) 
ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

COTY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 
SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS AMENDED, 

SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  
CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area 
described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in 
the R-1 Residence Zoning District, as follows: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), 
RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD 
HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH 
(T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF 
LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-
EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
And 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 
interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 
 

-338-

Item G.2.q. 



  WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 
hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), 
RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD 
HILLS, EXCEPT THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH 
(T89N), RANGE FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF 
LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-
EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 
Residence District. 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 
hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 
Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby 
re-enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 
include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
INTRODUCED: __________________________________________ 
 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 
 

-339-

Item G.2.q. 



PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 
 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-340-

Item G.2.q. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Standard Distribution, Co. 
  317 Savannah Park Drive in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
The Department of Community Development would like to request that City Council set 
a date of public hearing for the above referenced project that was approved by 
Development Agreement in September 2017 (Standard Distribution Co. Expansion 
Project).  The requested date of public hearing will be October 1, 2018.  Additional 
information regarding the partial property tax exemption and project construction status 
will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
        
 
 
 

-341-

Item G.2.r. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 
PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO STANDARD DISTRIBUTION CO., 
FOR A 53,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE ADDITION 
CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 317 SAVANNAH PARK ROAD, 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Standard Distribution Co., to the City 
Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial 
property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co., in connection with a 53,000 square 
foot industrial use warehouse addition constructed at  317 Savannah Park Road, Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 
scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 
required by law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

1. That the request of Standard Distribution Co., to pass an Ordinance granting a 
partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co., in connection with a 
53,000 square foot industrial use warehouse addition constructed on property 
located at 317 Savannah Park Road, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as set 
forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby scheduled for public hearing to be 
held on the 1st day of October 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers in the 
City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

-342-

Item G.2.r. 



2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 
public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 
more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of September 2018. 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
  

-343-

Item G.2.r. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description 
 

 
 
Lots 2 and 3, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase VI, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, and Lots 1 and 2, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase IX, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
  

-344-

Item G.2.r. 



CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2018. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2018. 

 
   
  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
  
 

 
 

-345-

Item G.2.r. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 
PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO STANDARD DISTRIBUTION, CO, 
FOR A 53,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE ADDITION 
CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 317 SAVANNAH PARK ROAD, 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 
Notice is hereby given that on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be 
held by the City Council of said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 
Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 
Tax Exemptions of Chapter 25, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the application submitted by 
Standard Distribution Co., for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of 
a 53,000 square foot industrial use warehouse addition constructed on property located at 
317 Savannah Park Road, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as set forth on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto. 
 
A copy of the proposed Ordinance is on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the adoption of said Ordinance granting a partial 
property tax exemption may be filed with the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on or 
before the date of hearing, and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

  

-346-

Item G.2.r. 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description 
 

 
Lots 2 and 3, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase VI, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, and Lots 1 and 2, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase IX, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

-347-

Item G.2.r. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: September 12, 2018 

SUBJECT: Sale of Lot 21 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II, all in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 3.04 acres, more or 
less. 

 
    
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for October 1, 2018 to address the proposed transfer of the above 
referenced City owned real estate to Six Kids, L.L.C.  The proposed project would 
consist of an approximate 18,000 sf. professional office facility on Lot 21 in the Cedar 
Falls Technology Park. Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the 
Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
       Mark Rolinger, Attorney 
       Jim Mudd, Jr., Six Kids, L.L.C. 
        
 
 
 

-349-

Item G.2.s. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 
ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND SIX KIDS, L.L.C.; (2) TO 
CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE 
LEGALLY DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO TO SIX KIDS, 
L.L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT; AND (3) PAYMENT OF 
CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS TO THE DEVELOPER 
PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from Six 

Kids, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement 
for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Six Kids, L.L.C. 
on terms which include: 
 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto (the "Development Property"), on certain terms and conditions;  
 
(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 
value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 
established at an amount not less than $2,700,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2031; 
and  
 
(3) Payment of certain economic development grants (the “Economic Development Grants”) 
to the Developer, to-wit: a sum not to exceed certain percentages of the Tax Increments collected 
by the City over a period of five (5) years with respect to the Minimum Improvements 
constructed on the Development Property by the Developer pursuant to the Agreement. 

 
 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 
of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 1st  day of October, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

-350-

Item G.2.s. 



Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, and Six Kids, L.L.C., and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the 
Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is 
on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 
notice of said public hearing. 
 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 

   
  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
ATTEST:   
   
   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 
  

-351-

Item G.2.s. 



CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2018. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2018. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

-352-

Item G.2.s. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 
 
 
 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or parcels of 
land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 21, Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 
Iowa (Contains 3.04 acres more or less). 

 
 

-353-

Item G.2.s. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 243-2713 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 
PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND SIX KIDS, L.L.C., (2) TO CONSIDER 
CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO TO SIX KIDS, L.L.C., 
PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT; AND (3) PAYMENT OF 
CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS TO THE DEVELOPER 
PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Notice is hereby given that on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 
the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 
said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from Six Kids, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 
(the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Six Kids, L.L.C., on terms which include: 
 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto (the "Development Property"), to Developer, on certain terms and conditions; and  
 
(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 
value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 
established at an amount not less than $2,700,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2031; 
and 
 
(3) Payment of certain economic development grants (the “Economic Development 
Grants”) to the Developer to-wit: a sum not to exceed certain percentages of the Tax 
Increments collected by the City over a period of five (5) years with respect to the Minimum 
Improvements constructed on the Development Property by the Developer pursuant to the 
Agreement.  
 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 

-354-

Item G.2.s. 



Any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written 
objections with the City Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 
 
This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa on the _____ day of ____________, 2018. 
 
 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

-355-

Item G.2.s. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 
 
 
 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or parcels 
of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, 
more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 21, Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa (Contains 3.04 acres more or less). 

 

-356-

Item G.2.s. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: September 13, 2018  

 SUBJECT: Rezoning request at the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway 
Avenue 

 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Conditionally rezone property from A-1, Agricultural District to HWY-1, 
Highway Commercial District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC, Buyer; Bayer Becker, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue 
 

 
The applicant has submitted a request to rezone 49.52 acres of land at the southwest corner of 
Highway 58 and W Ridgeway Avenue from the A-1 Agricultural District to the HWY-1, Highway 
Commercial District. The rezoning will allow for a retail commercial development on the 
property, consisting of one large retail store along with several other retail uses. Several 
additional outlots on the site will also be available for future commercial development. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission has considered the request and unanimously recommended 
approval, subject to certain conditions, which will be set forth in a conditional zoning agreement. 
 
Staff requests that Council set a public hearing date for October 1, 2018 to formally consider the 
rezoning request. A full staff report will be provided to City Council prior the public hearing. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 
Public 
Hearing & 
Discussion 
6/27/2018 

 
Staff presented background information on the rezoning proposal. Mr. Holst 
asked about the plan to mitigate the wetland area. Ms. Chimento with Midland 
Atlantic noted that it will be mitigated through a wetland bank credit. Mr. Arntson 
asked about the timing of the traffic study and the next piece in the process. Mr. 
Graham stated that the traffic study would be done and reviewed by the time the 
site plan comes to the Commission. Ms. Giarusso asked about the interchange at 
the corner of Ridgeway and Highway 58. Mr. Graham stated that the stoplights 
would probably be removed and off ramps added. Mr. Leeper asked the applicant 
to keep in mind that this is a gateway to the community and to be conscious of 

-357-

Item G.2.t. 



that in their design.  
 

Public 
Hearing & 
Vote 
7/11/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background 
information. She explained that the rezoning is intended to facilitate 
redevelopment of the site from agricultural use to a large mixed commercial 
development. On the future land use map, the property is shown as part of the 
commercial corridor; therefore the rezoning would be consistent with the 
comprehensive plan. She noted that utilities are available to the site. Staff was 
waiting for the traffic impact study to provide an analysis of traffic flow in the area. 
The study was submitted recently, but staff has not had enough time for adequate 
review. Any improvements recommended could be conditions in the rezoning 
request. Staff feels that this development would be a valuable improvement to the 
community and recommends approval with conditions. 
 
Ms. Saul asked whether applying conditions is a common practice. Ms. Howard 
explained that the conditions are placed at the rezoning time because that is the 
time the City is deciding whether rezoning is appropriate. State law allows 
conditional zoning agreements.  
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to approve with the staff recommended conditions 
provided to the Commission. Ms. Giarusso seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst, Oberle and 
Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

Attachments:  Resolution to set public hearing 
    Notice of public hearing 
     

-358-

Item G.2.t. 



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 29, ZONING, CODE OF ORDINANCES  
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND DIRECTING  

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission to change the zoning from A-1 Agricultural to  HWY-1 Highway Commercial 
District as described below, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said change in zoning, 
subject to certain conditions, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 
a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to amend Section  
29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III Districts and District 
Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, by removing and changing from the  A-1 Agricultural Zoning District, and 
placed in the HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning District the following described real estate: 
 
All that part of the East ½ of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly of 
Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and 571 LD 973, except those parts conveyed for 
public highway in 113 LD 199 and 539 LD 85, and also except that part thereof conveyed to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in Doc. No. 2011-00009788; 
 
AND 
 
All that part of the West ½ of the Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly and 
Westerly of Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and lying Westerly and Southerly of 
the public highway described in 569 LD 205 and 539 LD 85. 
 
And that said public hearing shall be held on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 
in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 
 
 
 

-359-

Item G.2.t. 



 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of September, 2018. 
 
 

  _________________________ 
                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-360-

Item G.2.t. 



 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED CHANGES IN  
SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND  
DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29), ZONING, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA BY REMOVING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE 

FROM THE A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND PLACING SAID 
REAL ESTATE IN THE HWY-1 HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, SUBJECT 

TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS 
 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an amendment to Section 29-107, 
District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of 
Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and known as the Zoning Ordinance and that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
proposes to amend said Ordinance by removing the following described real estate from the A-1 
Agricultural Zoning District, and placing the same in the HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning 
District, subject to certain conditions: 
 
All that part of the East ½ of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly of 
Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and 571 LD 973, except those parts conveyed for 
public highway in 113 LD 199 and 539 LD 85, and also except that part thereof conveyed to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in Doc. No. 2011-00009788. 
 
AND 
 
All that part of the West ½ of the Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly and 
Westerly of Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and lying Westerly and Southerly of 
the public highway described in 569 LD 205 and 539 LD 85. 
 
There will be a public hearing on said proposed change on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 
o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers amending said Section and the Ordinance and 
Conditional Zoning Agreement is now on file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is available for reference and inspection by the public.  
Objections to said proposed change in said Ordinance or Conditional Zoning Agreement may be 
made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and oral objections will 
be heard at said hearing. 
 

_________________________________ 
                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-361-

Item G.2.t. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 4, 2018.
	[180904MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on proposed submission of the City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs.
	[1. Memo to Council - Holding PH for CAPER 17.docx]
	[2. Cedar Falls CAPER FFY 2017 (Draft; 8-30-18).docx]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published September 10, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving the submission of the City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2931, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, upon its second consideration.
	[Ord 2931-CBD Overlay Amendment.docx]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the resignation of Donna Bash as a member of the Historic Preservation Commission.
	[Res - Donna Bash.pdf]

	b. Receive and file the bids received for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
	[1-Library - Bid Opening.docx]
	[2-Cedar Falls Library Recommendation.pdf]
	[3-Bid Tab_APPARENT LOW.pdf]

	c. Approve a request for a street closure on Park Drive on September 29, 2018.
	[1-Special Events Memo.doc]
	[2-Street Closure - Park Dr.pdf]

	d. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal.
(2) Doughy Joey's Peetza Joynt, 126 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(3) Little Bigs, 2210 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(4) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(5) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(6) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. (September 21-22, 2018)
(7) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - new.
	[Liquor Beer 9-13-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution naming official depositories for the City of Cedar Falls.
	[1-Depository Resolution memo.doc]
	[2-Depository Resolution 091718.doc]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY18 Official Financial Report for Streets.
	[1-Street Financial Rpt- Council Memo.doc]
	[2-FY2018 Annual Street Report.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving and adopting the rate of $3.89 per $1,000 taxable value for the Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) for FY20.
	[SSMID City Letter- Millage Rate FY20.pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Services Agreement with Municipal Code Corporation relative to agenda management software.
	[1-Municode Council Memo-final.docx]
	[2-Municode Meetings Quote Cedar Falls Iowa.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety Communications 28E Agreement with participating government agencies in Black Hawk County relative to providing consolidated dispatch and communications services.
	[1-Dispatch 28e Memo.doc]
	[2-28E Agreement CCC 8-1-18 FINAL.PDF]

	f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Access Agreement for Solid Waste Collection Services with Whispering Pines Condominiums Owners' Association relative to garbage, yard waste and refuse services. 
	[1-memo.pdf]
	[2-agrmt.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid of Huff Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $103,920.00, for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project.
	[1-Library - Bid Opening.docx]
	[2-Cedar Falls Library Recommendation.pdf]
	[3-Bid Tab_APPARENT LOW.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Huff Contracting, Inc. for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.g.)  
	[1-Library remodel contract memo.docx]
	[2-A101-2007 Owner-Huff Contracting.pdf]
	[3-Exhibits A, B & C.PDF]

	i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review.
	[1. Henry Traffic Study - SA#1.docx]
	[2. Supplemental Agreement 1.pdf]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to preparation of a Federal Recreational Trails Program Grant Application for the Lake Street Trail.
	[1-Lake Street Trail-grant application.docx]
	[2-MOU with INRCOG - Grant Application.pdf]

	k. Resolution supporting a Grant Application to the Federal Recreation Trails Program for the Lake Street Trail Project, and confirming the City's commitment to maintain the trail for public use for a minimum of twenty years. 
	l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of six Agreements for Professional Services relative to use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, in conjunction with the FY18-19 Annual Action Plan.
	[1. Council memo on service agency contracts 9-17-18.docx]
	[2-CCCS FY19 Contract combined.pdf]
	[3-FCC FY19 Contract Combined.pdf]
	[4-Food Bank FY19 Contract combined.pdf]
	[5-Pathways FY19 Contract combined.pdf]
	[6-Salvation Army FY19 Contract combined.pdf]
	[7-VNA FY19 Contract combined.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located at 815 Olive Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.
	[Rental to Single Family - 815 Olive-ALL.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for a mural at 408-412 Main Street.
	[1. CC Staff report- 408-412 Main Street MURAL - Copy.docx]
	[2. supplemental materials.pdf]
	[3. proposed mural.pdf]

	o. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for a building addition at 308 Franklin Street.
	[CBD site plan-308 Franklin.docx]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of four Owner Purchase Agreements and two Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting four Owner's Temporary Grading Easements and one Public Utility Easement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1-council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx]
	[2-W 1stPropAcq180917 map.pdf]
	[3-W 1st street acquisition docs 9-17-18.pdf]

	q. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of property located at the north end of Lakeshore Drive. 
	[Set PH - Rezoning A1 to R1 - Lakeshore-ALL.pdf]

	r. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for construction of a warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive.
	[Set PH - PPTE - Standard Dist-ALL.pdf]

	s. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development with Six Kids, L.L.C., conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Six Kids, L.L.C. and payment of certain economic development grants pursuant to said proposed Agreement.
	[Set PH - Agrmt for PD - Six Kids-ALL.pdf]

	t. Resolution setting October 1, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District, to HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, of property located in the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue, subject to certain conditions.
	[Set PH - Rezoning A1 to Hwy1-ALL.pdf]



	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum.
	L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	M. Adjournment.



